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Five Years Financial Summary

L ERBEBRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL%E

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Results S —E-N\E§ i —E-RF —E-hfF —E-|mE
Revenue W zs
(RMB'000) (ARETF) 90,251 615,899 479,111 7,801 11,108
(Loss) profit attributable ARRIZHERA
to owners of the (L (E18) & A
Company (RMB'000) (AR®FT) (34,461) 44,702 4,612 (33,783) 50,192
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (B8) 27
(RMB cents) (ARER)
From continuing and REFELEEBR
discontinued operations ERIEEEER
- Basic S (2.16) 2.93 0.30 (3.02) 5.33
- Diluted —#&% (2.16) 2.93 N/AT i F N/AT i F 376
At 31 December
R+=BA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Assets and liabilities EEREE —E-N\E§ —E—tF —E-RF “Z2-1fF —E-QmE
Total assets BEHLE
(RMB'000) (ARETTT) 1,535,616 1,382,377 1,508,282 1,656,810 1,348,211
Total liabilities AERE
(RMB'000) (ARETTT) (942,117) (787,982) (974,254) (1,134,447) (838,331)
Net asset value BEFE
(RMB'000) (ARETTT) 593,499 594,395 534,028 522,363 509,880
Equity attributable to owners B R EZHH A
of the parent (RMB'000) el
(AREFTT) 557,022 556,359 503,906 500,187 485,386
Non-controlling interests It
(RMB'000) (ARETF) 36,477 38,036 30,122 22,176 24,494
Total equity ExRE 593,499 594,395 534,028 522,363 509,880
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the China
Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Year”) is as follows:

Property Development and Investment

During the Year, the revenue attributed to the property
development and investment business amounted to
approximately RMB90,251,000 (2017: RMB547,341,000)
representing sales of properties of approximately
RMB88,324,000 (2017: RMB546,659,000) and rental
income of approximately RMB1,927,000 (2017:
RMB682,000).

The Group owns a property development project located
in Maoming City (the “Maoming Project”), Guangdong
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Maoming Project would be developed into a composite
of residential and commercial properties in three phases.
Majority of commercial and residential properties of phase
1 and 2 of the Maoming Project were delivered and
recognised as the revenue of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The construction of phase 3
of the Maoming Project was completed in late 2018 while
majority properties contracted for pre-sale will be ready
for delivery in 2019. As a result, the financial performance
of the property development business, due to reduction
of properties delivered during the Year, has declined as
compared to 2017.

A portion of the commercial properties of phase 1 and 2
of the Maoming Project of approximately 4,000 square
metres was leased and classified as investment properties
of the Group. Loss on fair value change on investment
properties of approximately RMB4,853,000 (2017: gain of
RMB43,644,000) was recorded during the Year.

BEEER W R DA

EH O

PREREEBERAT ([ARF]) REWB
AEI([AEB)RBE_ZT—N\NF+=-A
=+ BLEFE(AFE])ZCEEEHH
ElEET :

MEBRRIRE

RAFE MEBRIAKREEFEMLE 2K
FHOANRM®0,251,000 L (ZF —+ F:
ANR®547,341,0007T) BN ¥ E Y
AR#88,324,000 (=2 FE—+F: AR
#¥546,659,000) RS AN ARE
1,927,000 (ZFE—tF: AR ¥682,000
JL) °

AEBERTPEARANMBE ([HE])EREKX
AMEA—EWEREERRB ([XBEB]) - K
FEARS—HERRETEBRAYER B8
MFEEEREAR - KBARAE—HMEE_HK
MOomAEEEMERERBE_FT—tF+=
A=ZT—BALEFEXNEERAR/RGE - KXEHE
BE=HER-_ZFT-N\FRERIT M2THRE
EMERBABR_ZE-—NFEFAIHIAM-H
- MEBRREEOVBERREAFEZNY
ERIMB _ZE—LFHEMTBE-

BEEZEEBEF " HAFE_HERAVEDRREY
4,000 F AN BLEFTHEL B ALAEE
ZHREME - AFEEHRBREVWEZLANLE
FHEEHAREAL,853,000 (ZE—+F:
W AR #43,644,0007T) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERE DT

The residential and commercial properties contracted for
pre-sales are as follows:

BEETAANREZEERIANERET

Sales
amounts Percentage
HESHE Bk
RMB’000 (Note)
AR® T (F3E)
Phase 1 & 2 F—HRE_H 52,055 38%
Phase 3 =4 761,171 79%

Note: Refer to the percentage of area of residential and commercial
properties contracted for pre-sales over the total unsold area
of residential and commercial properties.

Trading of raw sugar

The Group has commenced its business in trading of
raw sugar since late 2014. During the Year, in light of
fluctuation in price of raw sugar and increased market risk,
no trading of raw sugar was performed. With reference
to the announcement dated 22 January 2018 and 14
February 2018 and circular dated 5 March 2018 of the
Company, in 2018, the Group has entered into a master
agreement and a supplemental agreement with China
Sugar Holdings Limited (“China Sugar”) to purchase raw
cane sugar from China Sugar for a period of 34 months
ending 31 December 2020. The management of the
Company is of the view that such arrangement could
enhance the sugar procurement network of the Group,
mitigate price risk of raw sugar supply and achieve a more
rapid expansion of its trading of raw sugar business.

There is no sales, purchase nor transactions with China
Sugar for the period from 1 March 2018 to 31 December
2018 in view of the sugar market fluctuation. To mitigate
the business risks, the management taken extra cautions in
exploring business opportunity in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2018, the PRC economy remained complicated. Due
to the trade dispute between the PRC and the United
States of America, the economic performance will remain
uncertain in 2019. Moreover, the operating environment
of the nationwide real estate market will still be restricted,
especially in first tier cities. The central government of the
PRC reaffirmed that the real estate market regulation will
not be unconditionally wavered.

However, urbanisation in the PRC is far from completion.
The management of the Company is confident that our
real estate project in Maoming City will not be materially
affected. In particular (1) good reputation of the Maoming
Project; (2) majority of properties of the Maoming Project
was contracted for pre-sale; (3) average selling price of
phase 3 of the Maoming Project gradually increased during
the Year; and (4) the local city transformation created a
strong end-user housing demands in the district of the
Maoming Project.

Regarding the Maoming Project, the Company will
continue to deliver the residential properties to its
customers according to their pre-sale schedule.

The final number of deliveries in 2019 is subject to the
project’s comprehensive completion inspection by the
local government and customers’ final possession of the
properties.

The remaining unsold residential units (without pre-sale
contract) of phase 3, represented approximately 16% of
total phase 3's residential units (by area), are mainly with
better quality. The management will continue to adopt a
higher selling price for these properties, and it is anticipated
that the average selling price of these properties will be
increased by approximately 10% to 20%. In order to
achieve this result, several sales campaigns will be rolled out
throughout 2019.

BEEER W R DA

mERERAIR

RZFE-)N\F PEEERKRERZEZE -ER
TEHEAXBZANESFm R_F—NLF-
RAEXRBDK TR I BRAFSHEDS
(FRlZ—REm) MELEREDHZBRH -
TEPRRNEREHETSEESTEE-

A FENRHEEREREXN - ARAE
BEEBREXKAMEHERABITEXINEAF
£ ARRAAER(MNKEZREBEBBERLT: (2)K
ZHRBABIMEDETAINEE: Q)XEBRA
BE—MZFHEEREAFRERNEH LT K&
(4)E MW HERERKXAIER ER LR A
PZaERTRK-

RXBEBEME  ARASEERBEREREE
MEFPRIMNEEME-

“E-NERINOKRBBBURRN E R F AR
Bk TRMNEPREMFEYE-

FE-MHBTIAREHEEEN (RITNES)IEF=
HBETEUMNNI6% (REET) TE2RES
BENEEEU -ERESEERZSTYERAR
REELREHZENFENFHEERIERLI0%
£20% - REBUWFRE BRBE TN FHH
ETHERD-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W& DA

The remaining unsold commercial units (without pre-sale
contract) represented approximately 50% of the project’s
total commercial units (by area). Since the residential units
will be delivered to the customers during both first half
year and second half year of 2019, the population in the
community will continue to increase in 2019. As a result,
the management will focus on commercial shops sales in
late 2019 and early 2020 as the demand of commercial
facilities in the community will be increased.

Regarding the car parks of Phase 3, the strata titles of the
car parks will be ready in 2020. The management is in the
view that the car park demands will increase as a result of
increased number of vehicles and improvement of living
standard in Maoming. As a result, the Company is planning
to launch major sales activities of car parks in 2020 as more
than 80% of car parks are pending for sales.

The management is also considering some improvements
and additions of public facilities in the community in order
to enhance the marketability of the remaining unsold
properties, including residential units, commercial shops
and car parks.

Besides the major sales activities of commercial shops,
car park and clearance sales on residential units in 2019
and 2020, in 2019 the Company will continue to actively
explore new investments opportunities in properties
development business, particularly in other third tier
and satellite cities since these will be mostly benefited
by the continuous urbanisation in PRC and less affected
by real estate market policies. The Company has repaid
all construction loan and paid substantial portion of
the construction fee of the Maoming Project, resources
and cashflow will be available for other property project
investments in 2019.

Regarding the trading of raw sugar business, it is the
goal of the Group to expand its supply chain worldwide
and to diversify its customer base in the coming years. As
described above, securing a steady supply source from
China Sugar will significantly improve the overall business
flow and enhance the ability of the Group in exploring new
customers in the coming years especially when the sugar
market becomes more stable and more resources are now
available for trading business.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB90,251,000 (2017: RMB615,899,000).
The loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB34,461,000 (2017: profit of
RMB44,702,000). The downturn of the revenue and profit
were mainly due to the following reasons:

(i) The majority of Phase 1 & 2 of the Maoming
Project, in particular the residential properties,
was completed and recognised as revenue during
the years ended 2016 and 2017. The majority of
Phase 3 of the Maoming Project is scheduled to
be delivered and recognised as revenue in 2019.
As a result, the revenue and profit attributable
to properties development business decreased
significantly.

(ii) The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
decreased slightly during the Year while a significant
fair value change on investment properties were
recorded in the corresponding period in 2017 upon
the reclassification of investments properties from
property held for sale. For the Year, the loss on fair
value change on investment properties amounted
to approximately RMB4,853,000 (2017: gain of
RMB43,644,000); and

(i) No revenue was attributed to trading of raw sugar
due to the underperforming market of raw sugar
during the Year.

For the Year, the Group’s operating activities generated
a net cash inflow of approximately RMB116,262,000
(2017: outflow of RMB10,333,000). As at 31 December
2018, bank balances and cash was approximately
RMB52,422,000 (2017: RMB26,322,000), restricted
bank deposit was approximately RMB8,169,000 (2017:
RMB8&,015,000) and pledged bank deposits were
approximately RMB38,085,000 (2017: RMB12,908,000).

BEEER W R DA

Bt %5 [o] 8

RAFE AEEMNRZEH ARKI0,251,000

ﬁ(:i@—tir/\ﬁﬁ%w,s%,ooo%)o$
NEHEANEMGEEDHD ARKE34,461,0007T
Tt F HEMARKA4,702,00070) ° I

BN THREEEHARTIERER:

(i) “%IEE%—HH&%_HE(t,\%E%
ME)ABHIERIARBE_T—~F
k—_F— tiiﬁ&ﬁﬁ’é%%/\o L]

BE=ZMAREOFEARXMER=_F—A
iﬁﬁwlﬁl/\ cHIt RER MR ERER
B U 28 Nog A K B R A

(i) RAFE AEEEREWEZHEBYUR
LomMRZE - FRBAKREMERKE
T—irffﬂjﬁ%*%%z&éi%%é%ﬁ”*ﬁéﬁ
BARBERAREH RNAFE KREWHE
NAREE %UZJEE’J'%EZU/\E@M 853,0007C

—TE—LEFFEAR®AL3,644,000

) R

FH”\

i) AARER BRRETSRRTE R
B 5 3 4 85 19 g 24 -

RAFR AEEAREXHELENRER

AFHEHARE116,262,0007T (= ift
F:RHBEAERE®10,333,000L) RN &
_)_\ﬂz—i——ﬂ_—i—_a ﬁE /\‘mﬁ&iﬁlﬁnﬁ

ARM52,422,000 (ZE—+tF: AR%
26,322,000L) - ARFBITERHOARK
8,169,000t (ZE —tF : AR¥S,015,000
) REBEFRITHERLHARKE38,085,0007T
—E—+F: AR¥12,908,0007T) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the
Group was approximately RMB1,535,616,000 (2017:
RMB1,382,377,000), representing an increase of
approximately 11%. The increase was mainly due to
further construction of phase 3 of the Maoming Project.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total secured bank
borrowings and loan payables amounted to approximately
RMB45,001,000 (2017: RMB135,960,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio, expressed as
a percentage of total secured bank borrowings and loan
payables over net assets was approximately 8% (2017:
23%) and the current ratio was approximately 1.6 (2017:
1.8).

FINANCE COSTS

For the Year, the finance costs were approximately
RMB2,798,000 (2017: RMB6,701,000). For the Year,
interest expenses of approximately RMB6,341,000
(2017: RMB5,143,000) was capitalised as properties
under development. Finance costs mainly comprised of
interests expenses on bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years of approximately RMB485,000 (2017:
RMB4,963,000), interests expenses on loan payables of
approximately RMB1,097,000 (2017: Nil) and interest
expenses on receipt in advance of approximately
RMB1,216,000 (2017: RMB1,738,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$182,469,000
divided into 1,824,690,520 shares of HK$0.10 each.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITY

On 14 September 2018, the Company and Celestial
Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the Placing Agent
has conditionally agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up
to 304,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company to not less
than six placees to subscribe at HK$0.15 per placing share,
for and on behalf of the Company (the “Placing”). The
Placing completed on 3 October 2018 that an aggregate of
300,212,000 placing shares have been successfully placed
to not less than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.15.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED B LigEmARAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

All conditions precedent of the placing as set out in the
Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion
of the placing took place on 3 October 2018. Pursuant
to the Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 300,212,000
placing shares with nominal value of HK$30,021,200,
have been placed by the Placing Agent to not less than
six placees at the placing price. As a result, the net price
per Placing Share was approximately HK$0.1465/0.1466,
representing a discount of approximately 1.6355% to the
closing price of HK$0.149 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the Placing Agreement.

The aggregate gross proceeds and the net proceeds
(after deduction of applicable costs and expenses relating
to the Placing) from the Placing were approximately
HK$45.03 million and HK$43.99 million respectively, (i) of
which approximately HK$10 million was used for partial
repayment of a secured interest-bearing bank loan; (ii) of
which approximately HK$30 million for partial repayment
of an unsecured and interest-free loan payable to a related
company controlled by a Director; and (iii) of which
approximately HK$3.99 million as general working capital
of the Company. The Board considers that the Placing
represents a good opportunity to (i) strengthen the financial
position of the Group; (i) reduce interest expenses from
bank loan; and (iii) broaden the shareholder base of the
Company. The Directors consider that the terms of the
Placing are fair and reasonable and the Placing is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 14 September 2018 and 3 October 2018.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure closely and consider the use of hedging
instruments when the need arises.

BEEER W R DA

REHBBABECEEETECRBLERAGHDE
ERCMBEEBECR-_ZE—N\E+A=0%
B e RIBEBRLE Wik 4 ££300,212,000EE A
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REBREETFTIRIRABERREA AL F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DN

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group's leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying values of
approximately RMB16,292,000 (2017: leasehold land
and buildings and properties under development of
RMB570,919,000) were pledged to banks for securing
general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, banking
facilities of approximately RMB11,776,000 (2017:
RMB119,304,000) were utilised and approximately
RMBS8,780,000 (2017: RMBS,686,000) were unutilised and
available for the Group's future financing.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in note 6
of notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital
commitments (2017: properties under development
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements of approximately RMB249,161,000).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 54 (2017:
71) full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Total
remuneration of the Group for the Year was approximately
RMB11,826,000 (2017: RMB21,117,000). The Group's
emolument policies are formulated on the basis of market
trends, future plans and the performance of individuals,
which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from provident
fund scheme and state-managed social welfare scheme,
share options will also be awarded to employees according
to assessment of individuals" performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum obligation
in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
approximately RMB632,271,000 (2017: RMB443,460,000).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared or proposed during the Year. The
Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the Year, the Company has complied with all
the Code Provisions of the CG Code.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no significant investments held as at 31
December 2018 nor material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries during the Year. There is no plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this annual
report.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director and chairman of the Company on 17 August
2012. Mr. Liu Feng has over twenty years’ experience
in the general management and sugars markets in the
PRC. Mr. Liu Feng is Vice Director of Sugar Association of
China* (R EEZWE) . Mr. Liu Feng is a founder of
an enterprise engaged in the sugar and starch production
business in the PRC. Mr. Liu Feng was awarded as a
“Distinct Entrepreneur” by China Economic Trading
Promotion Agency* (R EIA&EE Z{E#E ) in 2011 and
as a "Distinct Non-Government Entrepreneur of China” by
China Non-Government Enterprise Directors Association*
(FRRECERBE) in 2009. He holds an Executive
Master Degree of Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Liu Feng is the
father of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, the executive Director.

Mr. Chen Xian (“Mr. Chen"), aged 55, was appointed
as an executive Director and the vice-chairman of the
Company on 12 October 2007 and was re-designated as
the chairman of the Company on 30 November 2007.
Mr. Chen was re-designated again as the vice-chairman
of the Company on 17 August 2012. He is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is one
of the founders of a sizeable property development
company in Zhuhai, the PRC and has been a member of
the senior management of a subsidiary of that company.
Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for the investment and
development of real estate projects of such companies.
Before joining those companies, Mr. Chen worked as a
senior member of certain stated-owned companies and
the local authority. He has more than 16 years of extensive
experience in the investment and development of real
estate projects. He holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration from the Asia International Open University
(Macau).

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (“Mr. Lau”), aged 63, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2006 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 30
November 2007. Mr. Lau was also appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 30 November 2007.
He is currently also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce
with major in Accounting from the University of Alberta,
Canada and has over 20 years' experience in the field
of banking and finance both in Hong Kong and North
America. Mr. Lau is also a fellow member of the Institute
of Canadian Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, and a member of The Hong Kong Independent
Non-Executive Director Association.

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, aged 31, was appointed as an
executive Director on 30 September 2015. He is currently
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Liu Zhongxiang obtained a diploma of legal secretary from
the People’s Public Security University of China (A A
RAZAKE)in 2009. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang has eight years
of experience in diverse businesses, such as construction
and sugar production and trading. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
the son of Mr. Liu Feng, the chairman and the executive
Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (“Mr. Poon”), aged 47, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 29
November 2006. Mr. Poon is also the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Poon is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of CPA Australia
and a practicing member of Asset Management Association
of China. He holds a bachelor degree in administrative
studies from York University in Canada and a master
degree in practicing accounting with Monash University in
Australia. Mr. Poon worked for an international accounting
firm and was responsible for providing business advisory
and assurance services for listed companies. He has over 20
years of experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition. Mr.
Poon is currently an independent non-executive director
of Smartac Group China Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
395) and Teamway International Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1239), the shares of which are listed on main
board of the Stock Exchange since 29 January 2010 and
19 March 2019, respectively. Mr. Poon is the executive
director of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8622), since 3 August 2017, the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Poon
is also currently an independent non-executive director
of Gtyneon Holding Limited (SGX: 5HJ), since 11 August
2017, the shares of which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Limited. Mr. Poon was an alternate to Mr.
Amir Gal-Or, a non-executive director of Vincent Medical
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1612) from February 2016
to July 2017, the shares of which are listed on Stock
Exchange and the chief executive officer and company
secretary of Anxin-China Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1149) from February 2017 to May 2017, the shares of
which were listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
and were delisted on 20 December 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (“Mr. Char”), aged 69, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
30 September 2015. Mr. Char is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Char is currently a Barrister-at-Law and
was an independent non-executive director of National
Investments Fund Limited (Stock Code: 1227), from May
2007 to November 2018, whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Char holds a
bachelor of laws (Honours) from the University of London
and a master degree in Social Sciences from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Char was also the chief investigator and
senior assignment officer of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004 and
a chief executive officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.

Ms. Li Jiansheng (“Ms. Li”), aged 64, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 30 September
2015. Ms. Li is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee, a member of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.
Ms. Li was graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics of China (R BIERIEBAAEKRER) in July 1982,
majoring in infrastructure economics. In October 2006, Ms.
Li obtained the certificate for practicing as PRC Corporate
Legal Advisor from the Ministry of Personnel, the Ministry
of Justice and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Counsel of the
PRC. She was recognized as a senior accountant by the
Ministry of Personnel of the PRC in 1993 and has been a
member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of the PRC since 1999. Ms. Li obtained a master degree
in Executive MBA from HEC Paris in 2007 and a master
degree in Science in Applied Accounting and Finance
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2011. Ms. Li, for
the period from September 2007 to March 2014, was
appointed as vice president, chief financial officer and
general legal advisor of China Railway Group Limited (Stock
Code: 0390), the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the CG Code set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the Year. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Year.

COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing its corporate value. As at
31 December 2018, the Board consisted of seven Directors,
comprising four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018)

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The Directors’ biographical information are set out in pages
14 to 17 of this annual report. All executive Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board
except Mr. Liu Feng is the father of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang.

The Board has delegated the executive Directors with
authority and responsibility by handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of
the Company, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be taken
by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of
interim dividend and making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions
under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and
making recommendation for capital reorganization or
scheme arrangement of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties
as a Director may convene, or request the secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to convene,
a meeting of the Board to approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice.

The Company adopts the practice of holding meetings
of the Board regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Notice of meeting of the Board will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular Board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
Board meetings. Directors may participate either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

During the Year, nine meetings of the Board were held,
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The attendance of Directors at the
Board meetings and the Board committees’ meetings is set
out in the table below:

EFZeMBEFTETEBARRZSRER
B-ZEFNMARTRHELUEXER UEBTER
EEZEFE TEARAXERARRAZME ([
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BENNIEFLABERAE EFENEZEZE S
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HESH/RERLEZER
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee  General Meetings
3] =g ENZERS HHZEES R#EZEE RRAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Liu Feng ElESk 9/9 - - - 02
Mr. Chen Xian RExE 99 - - - 02
Mr. Lau Sai Chung oSt 9/9 - - - M
Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018) ~ Xia Dan& & - - - NATER

(R=Z-N\E-A

=+—HEHE) 1l
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang ARMEE 99 - - - 02
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael BRERA 9/9 M 33 m 02
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen EHRAE 719 02 13 02 1
Ms. Li Jiansheng FRERT 9/9 20 33 21 12
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive a comprehensive induction package covering
business operations, policy and procedures of the Company
as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group
also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the
continuous professional developments in relation to
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regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the B BEEXEREE:
Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:
Attended
Seminars or
Briefing/Read
Materials
Name of Directors SNMHER
EEpE EHNE BEM R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Feng £l 3t v
Mr. Chen Xian PR B S A v
Mr. Lau Sai Chung 2t A v
Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018) XiaDanZt (R=ZE—N\F—H N/ATE
=+—HET)
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang 2 BAMEE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael ERBEE v
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen BHREE v
Ms. Li Jiansheng FRELZ T v
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) are segregated
and are currently held by Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Lau Sai
Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the
Group's strategic planning and the management of the
operations of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer
takes the lead in the Group’s operations and business
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer which
provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years, and subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM") in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). Two of
the independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. On 20 December 2013,
the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, which has brought it in line
with the new Listing Rules relating to the board diversity
with effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
existing Nomination Committee has the following three
members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to the
Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination of
Directors should take into consideration the candidate’s
qualification, ability and potential contribution to the
Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. No Director
was newly appointed during the Year.
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TEERHRE

During the Year, two meetings were held by the
Nomination Committee to recommend the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM, to
review the size, structure, composition as well as diversity
of the Board, to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the changes of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered that the Group has achieved the objectives of
the board diversity policy during the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with the written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management. The existing Remuneration
Committee has the following three members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Jiansheng (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.
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Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements. During the
Year, three meetings of Remuneration Committee were
held for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration policy and
structure for as well as the remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management and considering
the remuneration packages of all newly appointed
Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. On 1 January 2019, the
Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, which has brought it in line with
the new requirement of the Listing Rules. The revised
terms of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The existing Audit Committee has the following three
members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.
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During the Year, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee to review and make recommendation to the
Board for approval of the audited results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018, to
discuss the accounting policies and practices which may
affect the Group with the management of the Company
and the Company’s auditor, to make recommendation on
re-appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
shareholders in the AGM, to review the fees charged by
the external auditor; and approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of external auditor and to review
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit functions of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions. The terms of reference
of corporate governance functions was adopted by the
Board on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with the CG
Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the policy
of the corporate governance and the corporate governance
report of the Company.

Director’s Nomination Policy

The director’'s nomination policy of the Company was
adopted by the Board and became effective on 1 January
2019 and the Nomination Committee is responsible for
execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilizes various methods for
identifying director candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and headhunters.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider
director candidates properly submitted by shareholders
of the Company through formal procedures set out in
the Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director.
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For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's consideration
and approval. For proposing director candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and
candidates nominated by shareholders of the Company are
evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the
director’s qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee
retains the discretion to establish the relative weighting of
such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to the recommendation of director candidates
by the Nomination Committee to stand for election
at any general meeting. The Board will take such
recommendations under advisement and is responsible
for designating the director candidates to be elected at
the annual general meeting of the Company and electing
directors to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with
their written consent to be appointed as a Director and
to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the director
candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on
the criteria as set out below to determine whether such
director candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each director candidate (where
applicable).
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For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
director candidate based on the criteria as set out below
to determine whether such director candidate is qualified
for directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her
candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by
the Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General
Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Directors including their attendance of Board meetings
and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Directors continue to meet
the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of Directors at the general
meeting.
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Director Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new
Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

(a

the highest personal and professional ethics and
integrity;

proven achievement and competence in the
nominee’s field and the ability to exercise sound
business judgment;

qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are
complementary to those of the existing Board,;

the ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company's
success;

the contribution on diversity of the Board and any
measurable objectives adopted by the Nomination
Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities
that is required of a member of the Board and
the commitment of time and energy necessary to
diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

meet the “independence” criteria as required under
the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is
in conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules
from time to time (where applicable).

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum
criteria for director candidate, although the Nomination
Committee may also consider such other factors as it may
deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 20 December 2013, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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(including sex, age, educational background, professional HEER BERKR THREB)OT:
experience, term of appointment and designation) of the

Board is as follows:

No. of Director

EEAH

Age group:
FHeER

Gender:

PR

Educational background:

HEHR:

Length of service (year):

ARG ER (F) -

Designation:

8

Below 41
ABRAT
41 10 50
41E505%,
51 to 60
51£2605%
Over 60
607% A =

Male
==

]
Female

E28

Hong Kong and Macau
BB KR

The PRC

b

Overseas

G

1-5
125%F
6-10
62104
Over 10
10 A £

Executive Director
WITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFNTES
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For the purpose of implementation of the Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company shall comply with the requirements
on board composition under the Listing Rules from
time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors
should be not less than three and one-third of the
Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or
have intensive experience of the industry on which
the business of the Group is.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the
Policy.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 14 July 2017 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited and to hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company.

The audit works of the Group for the Year were performed
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit SN BRI FTIRME 2 EE R B RIFEZRERB 2
and non-audit services provided by external auditor is set BN/ EBR2BRBHEEAINNT X :
out in the following table:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered Fri2 AR 3% e ENER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BE-2-\F HE_TtHF
t=RA=+—-8 +ZA=t—H

IEFE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =E EER AT
— Audit services — ZER T 1,280 1,280
— Non-audit services — IEZ AR 7
Interim review fhHAZE R 550 550
— Non-audit services Assurance — —IEZ BB ELR—
Continuing connected transactions SERERS 20 -
Total fee paid/payable Bt ERZEREH 1,850 1,830
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Fu Lui, was appointed on
2 July 2010. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and has regarded to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on the Group's
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
During the Year, Mr. Fu Lui undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements at the end of the
Year which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for the
Year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 93 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal controls
are maintained, while the management of the Company
is charged with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. A sound system
of risk management and internal controls is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework of
the Group

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing its
effectiveness. The Audit Committee supports the Board
in monitoring the Group's risk exposures, the design and
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the
Company assesses and presents regular reports to the
Audit Committee on its own assessments of key risks, the
strengths and weaknesses of the overall internal control
systems, with action plans to address the weaknesses.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified
in the course of its work. Taking these into consideration,
the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's system of risk management and internal
controls, and reports to the Board on such reviews. Work
and findings of the management of the Company are
considered by the Board in forming its own view on the
effectiveness of the system.

Currently the Group engages independent professional
team in performing internal audit work after considering
the independence, flexibility, and overall efficiency. The
Group will review on an annual basis the need for having
an internal audit team to perform the function.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and
Procedures

Control Environment — The Group has been operating
under an established and appropriate control environment
with reference to principles of “Internal Control and
Risk Management — A Basis Framework” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Risk management and internal controls cover effective
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance.

Risk Assessment — The Group continues to drive
improvements to its risk management process and the
quality of risk information generated, while at the same
time maintaining a simple and practical approach. We seek
to have risk management features embedded within our
operations, aiming to have a risk management system that
is practised on a day-to-day basis by our operating units.

The Board reviews and understands the risk factors of the
Group and operations annually, and the management of
the Company continuously monitors the scope and quality
of ongoing risk management and internal control systems.
The “Top-down” monitoring ensures risk management
features embedded within the operations and operated
effectively.

Meanwhile, the heads of operation units participate in
risk identification from “Bottom-up” so as to identify the
Group's overall risks.

Control Activities — The Group’s core property
development business and trading of raw sugar involve
well-established business processes. Control activities have
traditionally been built on top-level reviews, segregation
of duties and physical controls. We have been formalizing
and documenting the control processes in policies and
procedures. Written policies and procedures with defined
limits of delegated authority are in place, which facilitate
effective segregation of duties and controls.
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Planning and budgeting processes are one of key control
activities of the Group, which have been refined to
take into consideration risk factors. All operating units
prepare their respective operating plans pursuant to
corporate objectives for consideration. In this process,
they are required to identify material risks that may
impact the achievement of their business objectives.
Action items to mitigate the identified risks are developed
for implementation as well as for achieving the budget
and business objectives. Variance analyses are regularly
performed and reported to the management of the
Company and the Board. These help identify deficiencies
and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Capital expenditures monitoring is also significant to the
capital-intensive nature of the property business of the
Group. Depending on the nature and the size of the
projects, detailed analyses of expected capital expenditures
are submitted to the heads of operating units, executive
Directors or the Board for consideration and approval.

Monitoring Activities — The Board and Audit Committee
oversee the process, monitored by internal and external
professionals of the Group. The management of the
Company has emphasized in its updated reports to
the Audit Committee on movements of top risks and
appropriate mitigating measures. There is at least one Audit
Committee meeting substantially devoted to risks items.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

In handing and dissemination of inside information, the
Group:

will conduct immediate dissemination once inside
information is available and/or respective decision is
made, except the inside information falling into the
Safe Harbours of Securities and Futures Commission
that allow non-disclosure;

- complies with applicable laws, rules and guidelines
on disclosure of inside information issued by
Securities and Futures Commission;,

- decides and implements monitoring procedures
regarding dissemination of inside information; and

- communicates with relevant persons about
corporate information disclosure practices with
respective training.

REVIEW ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
IN 2018

The Board and the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
for the Year and such review is conducted annually. The
Board opts that during the Year, risk management and
internal control systems are effective and sufficient, and
no event leads to material impact on Group’s financial,
operational and compliance controls. Respective reviews
cover the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and the effectiveness of the Group’s processes
for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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RECOMMENDED BEST PRACTICES

Group'’s Risk Factors

As a basis of risk management, we should understand the
Group's existing risk factors and respective change from
time to time. Listed below are the nature of significant risk
factors that the Group is facing, whilst the listed factors will
not be exclusive:

Risk factors

o The Group may be unable to sell property
investment at expected prices or terms due to
volatility in the property market of the PRC.

o The Group is required to comply with numerous
government rules and new regulations to be
promulgated from time to time, and may be
affected by tightening measures launched by the
PRC government for regulating the real estate
industry.

o The business of the Group may be significantly
affected if the engaged external construction
contractors encounter any problem during
development of property given our full reliance on
them to conduct all the construction projects.

o Principal revenues and expenses of the Group —
Property development business are denominated
in Renminbi. Investors may indirectly invest in
the assets denominated in Renminbi. If Renminbi
weakens against Hong Kong dollars, the asset value
of the shares denominated in Hong Kong dollars will
decline.

o Implementation fluency and efficiency of exchange
control of the PRC will mitigate the ability of the
Group's fund transfer.

o The management of the Company is exploring new
investments opportunities in properties development
business, Group's risk factors may have changes
after investment.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing
and transparent communication with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation. A
shareholder's communication policy was adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the
shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of
the Company. The Company also uses various other
means of communication with its shareholders, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group's
business activities and development on the Company’s
website: www.chinauptown.com.hk.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company Secretary may be sent by post to
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Dividend policy

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
was adopted by the Board and became effective on 1
January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company. The Board endeavors
to strike a balance between the shareholders’ interests and
prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend

policy.
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The declaration and recommendation of dividends is
subject to the decision of the Board after considering the
Company'’s ability to pay dividends, which will depend
upon, among other things:

the Group’s financial results;

o the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital
requirements;

o the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

o the accumulated profits and distributable reserves of
the Group;

o the Group's shareholders’ interests;

o the Group's current and future business operations,

conditions, cycle and strategies;
o the general market conditions;

o the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and
industry’s norm;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions;
° past dividend record; and
o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend and the form to pay, subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Laws of Cayman Islands and the
Articles. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company at an annual general meeting and must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
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The Board may also consider declaring special dividends
from time to time, in addition to the interim and/or final
dividends.

There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
one or more shareholders holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any
general meetings of the Company. The shareholder shall
make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower 1, Silvercord,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder,
his/her contact details and the proposal regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower
1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or send
email to info@chinauptown.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Guidelines

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report issued by China Uptown Group Company
Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”). It has been prepared in compliance with the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Scope

This report covers ESG performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) from 1st January 2018 to 31st
December 2018. This includes our office in Hong Kong and
the Group's property development business in the PRC.

Feedback

The report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read. The
Group shall in the future continue to improve on content
and delivery of information disclosed in the report. We
welcome your feedback on the report for 2018 and any
suggestions you have in terms of what you would like to
see incorporated in our future reports. To contact us, you
may do so at: info@chinauptown.com.hk.
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RIS HERERBRE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

China Uptown has been responding to environmental,
social and governance issues appropriately. In addition to
maintaining business growth, we are committed to bearing
our share of social responsibility. Acknowledging the impact
of its business on the environment and the community, the
Group implements measures to ensure compliance with
rules and regulations related to environment, occupational
health and safety as well as product quality. The Group
works closely with its stakeholders for mitigating risks and
striving for outstanding performance in related aspects.
We believe that such commitments help build a better,
sustainable business.

As a property developer operating in China, we are aware
of the stakeholders’ expectations on enhancement of
environment related practices followed in our business
operations. We monitor construction projects strictly
in terms of management of the site environment,
reducing emissions, and wastes in order to minimize
the environmental impact of the construction work. Our
operations meet all relevant environmental laws and
national standards and strive for adoption of greener
construction methods whenever possible.

Maintaining close communication with its business
partners is key to the Group's sustainable development,
especially in aspects of occupational health and safety
and product quality. We have established effective
monitoring mechanisms for ensuring safe and high-
quality construction. Through engaging with our suppliers
and contractors on safety and quality standards, we
adopt stringent acceptance inspections and procedures
for preventing safety hazards and meeting customers’
expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group also attaches great importance to staff
development. Our training programmes provide
opportunities to our staff not only to attain necessary skills
but to grow and achieve higher goals in their careers. We
strive for a win-win situation where both the Company and
its employees benefit through achieving common goals.

We understand that it is our long-term responsibility to
protect the environment and enhance the social well-
being of communities where we operate. The Group is
committed to improving its ESG performance step-by-
step through cooperating with stakeholders and we look
forward to their valuable feedbacks and suggestions.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Embedding environmentally-friendly practices into its
management and operations, the Group is committed to
protecting the environment by measuring and managing
its environmental impacts, striving to improve resource
efficiency throughout the property development business.
The Group has established an Environmental Management
System (“EMS”) with 1SO14001 certification. The EMS is
led by the senior management, with the Environmental
Protection Team to execute various environmental
initiatives.

We have also set up an environmental protection and
monitoring agency, with environmental technicians as the
responsible party to manage and monitor the Group’s
environmental performance, and coordinate environmental
protection initiatives between the Group and the
Government.
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RIS HERERBRE

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws
and regulations related to environmental protection in
Hong Kong and PRC, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, the
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes,
the Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy, and the Law of
the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment.

In compliance with the Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment, we have commissioned a qualified
inspection and testing organization to carry out
environmental impact assessment, ensuring that
environmental impacts of our projects, including noise,
air pollutants and sewage, meet the relevant national
standards at the design and construction stages.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violation
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Resource Conservation

The Group is committed to implementing various resource
efficiency initiatives to reduce the carbon footprint of
its operations and to fulfil its social responsibilities for
addressing climate change. The Group's operations do not
involve any material use of packaging materials.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -EBRERERE

Energy Consumption BEIRE FE

The Group's operations involve the use of petrol, liquefied AEEWNEBSPRER AR RILAHER
petroleum gas (LPG) and electricity, of which petrol (LPGIREN AR AEEEN ARG EFR
consumed by vehicles accounted for 99% of total energy BEFEMII% c —E—NF - AEENRAERER
consumption last year. In 2018, total energy consumption 8495.71ERE RRTEANEEEREEF
of the Group was 8,495.71 GJ, with energy intensity of 3.8 FAK3I8EF -

GJ per square meter of relevant floor area.

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)

RREARE (FR)
10000 —
8000 73465 7,963.5
6000
4000
o 3,024.8
2000
0 368.5 585.6 532.2
2016 2017 2018
ST MY S M SF Myp
B Electricity &5 M Petrol, Natural Gas, Liquified Petroleum Gases (LPG) G + KRR « RILBHR
During the year, GHG emissions of the Group included FA AEENRERBHENBREREERE
direct emissions (Scope 1) from petrol used by vehicles Beamk BN REAERNEELER (8
and LPG consumed, and indirect emissions (Scope Il) from Bl) UAKEHWEEOBEEEHR(FEEIN) - =
electricity consumption. In 2018, our total GHG emissions T-N\F BMNAEREHENEE B1,207
amounted to 1,207 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent W — B LR E & (tC020) BB EE AHE
(tCOze). Emission intensity was computed as 0.54 tCOze BEABEEFTHAKOSAB _FILRES -

per square meter of relevant floor area.

Total GHG Emissions (tCO:ze)
BEREBERAE (tCOze)
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Energy-saving Initiatives

We strive to adopt energy efficiency measures in our
operations to reduce operational cost as well as protect
the environment. At office, we actively adopt green office
practices through recycling policy and reducing energy
consumption in office lighting, air conditioning and other
electrical appliances.

For property management, we monitor the performance of
our service providers, ensuring their operations are aligned
with our policies and guidelines in respect of environmental
protection. We are actively exploring options of switching
to renewable energy sources to further reduce fossil fuels
consumption as well as greenhouse gases emissions.

Water Consumption and Conservation

In 2018, total water consumption in property development
and office operations was 84,242 m?® and the water
intensity was 37.69m? per square meter of floor area. There
was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.
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In response to the increasing demand for water resources,
we focus on water saving measures in the process of
property development and management. For instance, we
set up temporary water treatment facilities at construction
sites to filter the water used for machine washing and
cooling and reuse it for construction operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Emissions Mitigation

The Group is committed to reducing emissions of air
pollutants, sewage and waste during its operations and has
established relevant policy. The Environmental Protection
Team is responsible for supervising and inspecting the
implementation of emission control measures and provide
recommendations where applicable.

As most of our construction work are outsourced, we
maintain effective communication with our suppliers and
contractors to minimize emissions. Our environmental
protection department is responsible for monitoring
environmental performance of the contractors and
suppliers.

Air Emissions

Vehicle operation is the major source of the Group’s air
emissions. In 2018, the Group's sulphur oxides (SOx),
nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matters (PM)
emissions were 0.2 kg, 17.6 kg, and 1.6 kg, respectively.

Solid Waste

The Group's operations do not involve generation of
hazardous waste. In 2018, we generated 14.2 tonnes of
non-hazardous waste, which was mainly from construction.
The increase in waste generation is due to the new
development projects during the year.

RS HERERBRE
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RIE - HERERRE

Emission Reduction Measures BB

The Group conducts regular inspections, maintenance and REBEETTHRE REREERRR®E

monitoring of environmental protection facilities to ensure MREZERBE SR RAIR - T PIEE A B E
proper treatment of pollutants and waste. We encourage REtEEETORTE AEENYEERIER
our contractors and suppliers to do the same. The following KRHZIEBBEREEDT

are several mitigation measures undertaken by the Group’s
property development projects:

Emissions Mitigation Measures
23587 B 15 e
Air pollutants o Use sprinklers and covers to reduce spreading of the dust generated by construction
ZERT Y machinery and vehicles

. 5 FRBIKBR IR E MR + AR > e T 6 Ak K 8 8 /25 AE A JK BB 8 AR

o Use protective nets at the construction site to prevent the spreading of dust

. T b6 T35 35 (5 FA B R 48 AR LIk BE AR A »
Solid waste o Collect waste at designated points, which is then centralized and managed by
BEREY) environmental department

. EREHWENR  ARRMBFAK—SHER

o Recycle construction waste

. (8] U5 22 S 57 3]
Noise o Reasonably arrange construction time and strengthen the management of
R transportation vehicles

. SR TRRE - R ERHEREIR

o Adopt sound insulation and vibration reduction measures

. Rk BRI

o Set up greening areas to reduce noise from vehicles

. BB RIE AR D EE RS
Water effluent o Set up temporary water treatment facilities to filter and reuse the water in
BE 7K construction sites

. $22 57 [ B VK B TR BR e - 3B R AT AR R M R SR T4 7K
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR PEOPLE & COMMUNITY

Employees are the foundation of the Group's
accomplishments. We are committed to providing a
comfortable and supportive workplace for them. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had a total of 54 employees.
Below is an overview of the composition of our employees
by region, gender, age and position:

Geographic Region it &

20%

80%

B Maoming, China F#EIX#& M Hong Kong &%

Gender %3l

43%

57%

B Male £t M Female Z 1

The Company complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Labor Law of
The People’s Republic of China and the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, that have a significant impact
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

RS HERERBRE
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RIS HERERBRE

To ensure compliance, the Group recruits and selects
employees on the basis of merit, regardless of age, race,
gender, religion, family status or disability, treating all
employees in a fair manner on remuneration, leave,
resignation and termination arrangements.

Devoted to creating a diverse, secure and respectful
workplace, a non-discrimination policy is set in place.
Workplace harassment is prohibited. The Group encourages
employees to report suspected cases of discrimination
directly to the senior management. Thorough investigations
are conducted immediately.

To enable the employees to achieve their full potential, we
provide equal opportunities for training and development
based on talent and needs. Employees’ rewards and
promotions are measured by ability, performance,
contribution and experience.

In 2018, our total turnover rate was 19%, while the new
hire rate was 6%. The following section presents our
turnover and new hire rate by age for the reporting period.

RERAHR AKREHBERIEETRHZRR
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RZE-—NF HMNBREIREAXEHET
ABEDR A19% K6% o K 255 PR H
EHRRFREFNSSPNE T REAREHET

Turnover and new hire rate by age

BRERESNEIRAERHMETARE

67%

15%
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D30 B

B Turnover Rate B T %k %

During the year, we were not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations having a significant impact on
the Group relating to employment and labour practices;
nor did we identify any incidents relating to the use of child
or forced labour.
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Health and Safety

Strictly complying with the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group ensures safety
practices are followed at construction sites rigorously
according to national standards. Sub-contractors are
required to establish emergency action plans, to prepare
necessary equipment and machines and to minimize
occupational hazards.

During construction, we supervise engineers in monitoring
the safety practices and performance of the contractors.
Contractors are required to submit a safety measures plan
to the supervising engineer and the Group for approval
before construction work commences.

The Group offers safety training to employees and regularly
assesses the training needs to maintain standards and
safety management. In 2018, a total of 1,091 person-times
of safety training was recorded, with total safety training
hours amounting to 645 hours.

Total safety training hours

REF BN

645

2017 2018
—E—tx =T Y-
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RIS HERERBRE

We require our contractors to comply with all relevant
environmental and hygiene management related laws
and regulations to provide a safe and healthy working
environment to their employees. There were no work-
related fatalities recorded during the year. The Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact relating to
providing a safe working environment and protection of
employees from occupational hazards during the year.

Training and Development

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group's
long-term success. It is essential to contribute resources
for training and strengthen the competencies of our
employees.

Trainings are organised for employees, including directors,
senior management and frontline staff, aiming not only
to upgrade related skills for fulfillment of job-related
duties but also to build capacity for achieving business
goals of the Group. Suitable training and development
opportunities are provided to assist employees to meet their
training objectives. Mandatory participation from relevant
employees is required in case of certain courses which have
a significant impact or are related to major updates of
regulations of the Group.

Regular training which includes weekly customer report,
sales summary and marketing training aims to help
employees understand the latest market situation. Monthly
training aims to set future sales targets. Specific training for
opening of model rooms, market competition, price and
sales skills are also provided to enhance the competency of
employees. Apart from internal training, external training
programs and seminars are also encouraged in order to
enhance their skills and abilities.
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In 2018, 68% of male employees and 65% of female
employees received training, while 55% of managerial staff
and 80% of front line employees were trained. The average
training hours completed per employee was 12 hours
during the year.

Community Investment

Striving to become a responsible corporate citizen, the
Group has been bearing its share of social responsibility.
Offering a helping hand to communities in need. we
made a donation of RMB200,000 to community projects
providing support for social development in 2018.
The Group will continue to work with partners in the
communities and explore its options when contributing to
the society.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

It is the Group’s mission to provide high quality properties
to our customers. We strive to adopt best practices
regarding supply chain management and quality assurance,
ensuring all operational processes comply with excellent
standards.

Supplier Management

With property development as the main business of the
Group, we regard suppliers and contractors as our crucial
business partners. We have a list of evaluation criteria,
which include track record, financial strength and quality
standards, to be taken into consideration during the
selection process. To fulfill our commitment of providing
quality services and products to our customers, we attach
great importance to the international environmental,
quality and safety standards, such as ISO 9001, I1SO 14001
and OHSAS 18001. Contractors adopting these standards
are given high priority.
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Regarding the management of suppliers and contractors,
constant and clear communication is our main approach,
which helps ensure that they understand and align with our
principles and values. Hence, we have included all essential
terms and clauses in the contracts, such as construction
scope and structure used, required quality standards, as
well as mutual and separate responsibility.

We require contractors to avoid infringement of the rights
of community members to use public facilities and any
disruptions to their daily lives during the construction
process, and we regularly monitor and assess contractors’
ESG performance, which is taken into account when
considering future collaboration.

To ensure and improve the quality of construction work, we
encourage contractors to provide training in occupational
safety to construction workers, and to arrange regular
assessment to evaluate their skills and performance. We
also welcome the establishment of a quality award system
through negotiation with contractors, aiming to motivate
and reward them for achieving quality standards higher
than the national or contractual requirements.

Product Responsibility

Striving for excellence in the quality of our products and
services and user experience, we put health and safety
as our top priority, and require our business partners to
meet the relevant regulatory requirements. Our contractors
are responsible for maintaining construction quality by
following the designated construction plan and appropriate
construction standards, while environmental and hygiene
conditions are also considered.
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Before obtaining construction permit and commencement
report, contractors are required to set up clear procedures
for supervision of quality and safety in accordance with
national regulations, and construction management
agencies with specialized management personnel should
be present at the construction site to ensure thorough
checks. The Group assigns a supervising engineer to inspect
the progress, quality and safety of the construction, and
to carry out inspections and assessments on construction
materials, equipment, facilities and techniques used by
contractors. The engineer approves, notifies and confirms
with the contractors important instructions on behalf of the
Group.

Supervisory
Engineer
BE3E TR2AM

RS HERERBRE
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REREMM  &E Rt RRMTETRR R
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The Group
REE

Inspection and
ET I
BERIE

Construction permit and
commencement report
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Figure 1: Inspection procedures before construction
commences
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RIS HERERBRE

Upon the completion of a construction project, it is subject
to inspection and checking, ensuring the final product
satisfies national and provincial standards. As shown in
Figure 2, government authorities, supervising engineer and
the Group carry out inspections in the areas of fire safety,
environment and quality at the construction site, and an
acceptance certificate is granted to the contractors on
approval.

The Group submits relevant documents and license to
the authority concerned, such as departments of public
security, fire services and environmental protection, as
required by the Regulations on the Quality Management
of Construction Projects. If defects are found during
the inspection, we require the relevant parties to take
responsibility according to contractual terms. After the
completion of remedial measures, re-checking is carried out
before acceptance, with detailed records kept.

REELBRRI®R BETRRBRREZSE  BR
REREMNTABERNERFE FWOBE 207K -
BF#E ERTREMAAEEERTIRSY
HZ2 RRLREETEETRE HHER
FABERERWES -

AEBZR(ERIBEEEEKRI) WL
Ko RABREEP AR B MIREFEEFIEE
R RAFAIE - MR RE BT HIRR
fa BMERKBEIRESQGRFRESE-
REfRERETRE EREMETEN RS
I 1R B &F 4R 8% o

Government Supervising
Authorities Engineer Th;:;rup
BRER BE3E T 26D -

Fire Safety
HBERZ

BRI

Environment

Acceptance Certificate

RUEE

Figure 2: Procedures of acceptance inspection

With respect to the property sales and services, we
strive to disclose all necessary information, so as to help
customers in decision-making. We put great emphasis on
property management by working with qualified property
management companies to raise customer satisfaction.
In addition to regulatory compliance, we adopt an ethical
approach in marketing communication, as demonstrated in
our advertising and promotional activities.
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Aiming to provide the best products and services, we
greatly value customers’ opinions and follow appropriate
procedures to collect their feedback. Review of the
feedback enables us to make improvements accordingly.
During the year, we were not aware of any incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group concerning health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

Anti-corruption

Integrity is one of the core values of the Group, we adopt
a stringent approach towards corruption, following relevant
anti-corruption laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong and the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China. Mandatory reports must be filed to notify and report
to the authorities if any acts of corruption are discovered.

Any form of bribery is strictly forbidden for all employees
regardless of their positions and departments. We expect
our employees and stakeholders to report any suspected
corrupt conduct to senior managers. We provide training
and information sessions on corruption prevention to
employees in order to raise their anti-corruption awareness.

The Group takes any incidents of prosecution for corruption
into consideration when choosing business partners, and
does not collaborate with suppliers and contractors with
past conviction records. We require our business partners
to sign an Anti-corruption Agreement which is attached as
an appendix in the contracts. Contractors must not violate
the relevant anti-corruption laws and regulations during
the contract period. Any corrupt behavior from contractors
leads to termination of contract, request for compensation,
and pursuit of legal actions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

During the year, the Company was not aware of any FR ARV TNEBEREFANEAEEEE
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations that AZENEBRER R BEFEREEEDN)
have a significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, B K L H o

extortion, fraud and money laundering.

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY ARHERE

Total Headcount

YN

By Geographical Distribution

B ith 5 2

Maoming 43 60
[

Hong Kong 11 11
HB

Total 54 71
mEt

By Age

RER

<30 6 26
31-50 40 39
>50 8 6
By Gender

gl

Male 31 36
S

Female 23 35
gl

By Educational Background

BRYBER

Degree or above 41 50
BRI F

High school or below 13 21
SR

By Employee Category

RETHEHR

Management 29 34
g

Front line 25 37
Ail #5%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -EBRERERE

Employee Turnover Rate

EIRKE

By Age

BRER

<30 67% 10%
31-50 15% 4%
>50 0% 1%
By Gender

gzl

Male 3% 6%
B

Female 39% 10%
g

Employee New Hire Rate

FETABE

By Age

RER

<30 33% 13%
31-50 3% 3%
>50 0% 0%
By Gender

Qs

Male 3% 6%
S

Female 9% 10%
g

Percentage of Employees Trained

ZIETES L

By Gender

=R

Male 68% 63%
EeRks

Female 65% 65%
e
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RIE - HERERRE

By Employee Category

BREITEHR

Management 55% 40%
=§id

Front line 80% 85%
Rl AR

Average training hours 12 103
F £ 5% 91 B Y

By Gender

gl

Male 12

B

Female 12

g

By Employee Category

BREITEHR

Management 14

B

Front line 10

Al 4%
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Safety

.
Eogea

Environment
IRIR

Safety Performance

ZERHR

Work-related injuries

I5

Lost days due to work injuries

AIGHEATIERR

Work related fatalities

B T {ER RBAH) B an F il

Training on Occupational Health
and Safety

BExREREZ2EI

Total personal-times training

[EPN=EIECI/S -

Total training hours

#8355 B 2R

Percentage of employee trained

XINETESL

Total Resources Consumption
BERHERE

Electricity

EIE"

LPG

Y =i s

Petrol

H

Total Energy intensity

N

E&}
it

HBEEE

Water
7K
Water intensity

KEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERBRE

kWh

T EBF

kg

T=

litre

A

GJ/m?

floor area
H=E
FY¥H K-
REE TR
m3

m?3/m?

floor area
MK
¥ K~
R

1,091

645

58%

2,212,086
2,500
12,762

3.8

84,242

37.69

960

580

63%

2,040,702
3,000
13,651.3

/

25,450
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RIE - HERERRE

Environment
IRz

Community

ol

Greenhouse Gases Emissions
BRERBHEN
GHG emissions
= R EE BRI

Scope |

#E—

Scope |l
#E—

Emission intensity

B E

Air Pollutants from Vehicles
HEZERISEY

NOx

REY

SOx

maiy

PM

B FERL

Waste

=37

General waste without recycling

AEKR—RREEY)

Donation
B
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tCO2e
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tCO2e
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==RE=EN

tCO2e/m?
floor area
7= 73
h =
a\a ==
K-
BREME

kg
Fi
kg
Fi
kg
F

Tons
NI

RMB ‘000
ARBT T

1,207.3

41.5

1,165.8

0.54

17.6

0.2

1.6

14.2

200

1,121.2

45.4

1,075.8

16.4

0.2

1.5

9.22
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are engaged in (i) property
development and investment; and (ii) trading of raw sugar.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business segments
and geographical segments for the Year is set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in this
annual report on pages 94 to 207. The Board does not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET
OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTUS

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 5 to 13 of this annual report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including market risk, credit
risk, and liquidity risk. The risk management policies and
practices of the Group are shown in notes 35 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group commits to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting
in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction.

The Group also commits to the principle and practice of
recycling and reducing. To help conserve the environment,
it implements green office practices such as re-deployment
of office furniture as far as possible, encourage use of
recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided
printing and copying, reduce energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings, air conditioning and electrical
appliances. Details for the environmental policies and
performance of the Group during the Year are set out on
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
45 to 66.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.
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Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the Year, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Articles, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duties in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share
capital and share options are set out in notes 25 and 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 98 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2018, including the share premium less
the accumulated losses of the Company, available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2017:
approximately RMB25,492,000).

Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The reserves of the
Company available for distribution further depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
during the Year is as follows:

Report of Directors
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TEEFREER

RAFE AEETEXPLRHERREHE
RERBREFBET:

Percentage of
the Group’s

total sales

EEEE

HMEEHEAS

The largest customer BRARF 47%
Five largest customers Fi NS 59%

Percentage of
the Group’s total
purchases
EEX
BRBE
Ao

The largest supplier
Five largest suppliers in aggregate

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the total number of the Company’s shares in issue) had
any beneficial interest in the five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the report date are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018)

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng

RAHER 88%
KA E R AR ST 95%

RAFE EF REZBREBEALTHRE
EEZMAEEARARAERHTRNDAE 5%
F2ARRBMEMRRBEREERAETR LHE
BB e

2
ATRRAEFRERBEREAHRZIES:

BITES

Rk (FE)

BRESXAE (FIE/E)

Rt R E (7TTHABEE)

Xia DanZ T (R=_ZE—NF—A
=+—HET)

2 Bk &

BAFHTES
BEEBERE

EHBEE
FrAELL
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Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael and Ms.
Jiansheng shall retire from office by rotation pursuant
to article 87(1) of the Articles, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 14
to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed term.
Each of the executive Directors may receive double pay
and discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion having
regard to the operation results of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and
Ms. Li jiansheng, has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either
direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the Year.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael,
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Ms. Li Jiansheng, an
annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY/CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors consider that those related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 22 January 2018, Techwayson Trading Limited
("Techwayson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) with China Sugar, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, for purchase of raw cane sugar from China
Sugar. On 14 February 2018, Techwayson and China Sugar
entered into a supplement agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to supplement and amend certain terms
of the Master Agreement. The Master Agreement dated
22 January 2018 as supplemented and amended by
the Supplemental Agreement dated 14 February 2018
(the “Revised Master Agreement”) has been approved
by independent shareholders of the Company at the
Company'’s extraordinary general meeting convened on 21
March 2018.
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Pursuant to the Revised Master Agreement, Techwayson
agreed to purchase raw cane sugar from China Sugar for a
term of thirty four (34) months, from 1 March 2018 to 31
December 2020 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to the Revised Master Agreement, China Sugar
and Techwayson shall enter into specific contract(s), which
shall set out the details, including but not limited to the
unit price of the raw cane sugar, quality specification,
origin, packing, payment terms and destination. Detailed
terms and conditions for the continuing connected
transaction shall be governed by the specific contract(s)
to be entered into between Techwayson and China Sugar
pursuant to the Master Agreement.

There is no sales, purchase nor transactions with China
Sugar for the period from 1 March 2018 to 31 December
2018 in view of the sugar market fluctuation.

China Sugar is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Zhongxiang,
the executive Director. Accordingly, China Sugar, Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang and Mr. Liu Feng are the connected persons
to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules and
the transaction under the Revised Master Agreement
constitutes continuing connected transaction on the part of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In view of the Group’s plan to further expand its business
in trading of raw cane sugar, the entering into of the
Revised Master Agreement between Techwayson and China
Sugar will strengthen the existing business and secure the
procurement of sugar trading business of the Group and in
turn increase the revenue of the Group.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have reviewed the said continuing connected
transaction and considered that (i) the Revised Master
Agreement was entered into in the ordinary business and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) the Revised
Master Agreement was entered into on normal commercial
terms after arm’s length negotiation; and (iii) the terms of
the Revised Master Agreement are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The Board received a letter from the auditor of the
Company confirming that nothing has come to its attention
that causes it to believe that the continuing connected
transaction is under the situations as set out in rule 14A.56
(1) to (4) of the Listing Rules.

For the details, please refer to the (i) announcement
dated 22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018; (ii) circular,
notice of extraordinary general meeting and proxy form
dispatched on 6 March 2018 and (iii) poll results of
extraordinary general meeting dated 21 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant related
party transactions and connected transactions entered into
by the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics, and approved by the Board.

Details of the related party and connected party
transactions are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Report of Directors

EEEHE

E= (BRBUFBTER)EEHN LAFE
ERS WRRBNVEEFTRBEIINART
ZEFENBERBBEPITIL  (IDEIER] W
BIOEBEB—RBRAZGRIERFERRIL: &
(IEETRBZEZGIBRAFEE  AFEN
NEIREBRRZERBME -

EE B AR R EADEE b w) ki - MRS
AEMEEREEARRFEFERZIBN MR
AIE14A.56 (EAIRFIEAER

EBHAB BH2HMOBHEAE-_ZT—NFE— A
“+-BE-ZE-NE-_AF+HBEMHRAE (i)
RZE—N\FZANBFENRRENAREE
B BEREARRRERGNBHEAE=ZZT—N
FZAZ+—HORRBHASERELR-

BREXHEBEEN AEBEMER]LEKRNEEE
NRGRAERS -

A B R
EFIMEHNRBEAQAAZELEM BAR
ARALBMSEEHFHEREE R LA
ERHE -

BEALRNBEFRSGZHFBREAMERE
B sE29 P& -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #El L#&EBARAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\££H

75



Report of Directors

EEEHE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (1) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (2) which are required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(3) which are required, pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

EERARARDREERDNEERXR

RZE—NF+_A=+—H XREIZE=SE
KFETHRABRARAIRERE ZE (&
REBEHRIPEEFEXVI) MK - BERG
KEBEHFFHEANREESFRBEKHEXVI
%U&“*@ﬂAKQT&%x%Z%‘&M
B (BEBREEFRBEKRNEBIKXHEIRB
& BB ZERIARE) Q)BT ARE
Wﬁ&%fh%%%ﬂ,hm*m&ﬁﬁm%
AR HG)RBEZETFRMABMNAR
&%x%Z%m& - NS

Approximate

percentage

of the total

Number of number of

underlying shares of

Number of shares held the Company

ordinary pursuant to in issue

share(s) share options PN

Capacity/Nature of held BEBRE ERITRH

Name of Directors interests fris BENER BEBL

IR B/ BuME EERYA RAEE BAt

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 0.82
2BMEE ExBEEA (Note 1)
(PtzE1)

Interest of 242,105,262 - 13.27

a controlled corporation (Note 2)
T DB MR (H&2)

Mr. Liu Feng Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 0.22
S ERBEEA (Note 1)
(PBEET)

Mr. Chen Xian Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 0.55
RETE ERBEA (Note 1)
(PtzE1)
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Approximate
percentage
of the total

Number of number of
underlying shares of
Number of shares held the Company
ordinary pursuant to in issue
share(s) share options PN
Capacity/Nature of held REERE EBRTRG
Name of Directors interests Fris BFENER BYHHN
EEHE B3/ REiE EER¥A gk ¢! Bk
Mr. Lau Sai Chung Beneficial owner - 8,000,000 0.44
Euggtea EREEA (Note 1)
(PEET)
148,000 - 0.01
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.05
ARELE ERBEAA (Note 1)
(BaE1)
Mr. Char Shak Ngor Stephen Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.05
EHRAE ERHEA (Note 1)
(PEE1)
Ms. Li Jiansheng Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.05
TEELL BEXRBAA |(Note 1)
(Praz1)
Notes: B 5T
1. These shares of the Company represent the share options 1. ZERRABRMREARFTNR_ZE—+FLAT=

granted by the Company on 13 July 2017 under the share HRIR AN A A B AR At B4R 2 P AR A -

option scheme of the Company.

ZEARBBRNBETEEEEEERARES
PEEXEEEGRARAZEMEEI0%HES IR
BEFRBEEG JEMEERR ABES PBEE
EEEBRARMFRARRG 2o

2. These shares of the Company are held by China Sugar 2.
Holdings Limited which is 100% owned by Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
China Sugar Holdings Limited.

BEXFBEEEN R_ZE-NF+A
=t+t—B ARBDEEFRTIBTHRAEBUEE
FOBEALTHER AR R SE AR EE A
D HERODKXEFTEEACAREIESF K

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company nor
their associates had any interest or short position in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations which were recorded in the register MEKROIFEI2ERTEEFE 2 E LM KBRIE
required to be kept under 352 of the SFO or notified to the = AESF B B A€ AN R B K B 3 P A0 £ {A) 4 R 5K
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model KB o

Code.
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FERR

RZE—NF+_A=+—H EFEZXZUT
AT (BARRESEREZITHABEIN)RAK
NERMDSIEERDFTHEEERIAE MR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) has interests or

short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the BESMPERGEXVIBE2RID HAMB AN
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company ANEIRE KR ARRAIREZF KHAEEH

under the provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

FEIIHRIRERAFECTERRELMA -

Long position in ordinary shares REFERZIFE
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
underlying number of
Number of shares held shares of
ordinary pursuant to the Company
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests share(s) held share options in issue
REBERE (ARIASHST
HENER REAHN
TERRES BB L2V 3331 FEERYAE RO#E BREDH
China Sugar Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 242,105,262 - 13.27
R EEERAT BB A
Guangdong Nanyue Bank Person having a security 242,105,262 -
First Direct Branch* interest in shares (Note 1) 13.27
EXRBERITRNERAA BERD 2 ERESZAL (PEET)
FHBXIT
Note: Bt 3k

1. China Sugar Holdings Limited has provided a share charge
in respect of the 242,105,262 shares held by it in favour of
Guangdong Nanyue Bank First Direct Branch*.

*  For identification purpose only
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who,
as at 31 December 2018, had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company at the AGM held on 30 November 2009
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing
from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
from 30 November 2009 (the “Date of Adoption”) (that
is from 30 November 2009 to 29 November 2019). The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to the participants who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have made or may make
contribution to the Group or any invested entity as well
as to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees
and to provide them with a direct economics interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.

Report of Directors

EEEHE

BREXFHBEREEN R_ZFT—-NF+_A
=t+t—HB ARFAEEFRTIBTHRAEHTHA
BEMALTRARRROFABERD D EA R
@mEORR MIREBEZZ MNP ERMNFEXVEE2
K37 BIRXBRAARRBRE - HELAXRER
BEREFMOAEKRIIEIBKRIAERAFEZE
LA -

IR MR &

BREABCR _ZETAF+-A=ZTHETHT
ZBRRBFREG EEARARRIERS (T
PerERtEl)) -BREAEBE -_ZFTTNAF+—A
=tA(IRABH]RABRESEBEHE
AT FEHE (I _FETAFt-A=1THEZ
E-NFT-—AZTAB)ARADRER - BK
B ESARATHESTSRNBRE
HAREEHTMRKREERIELAAREIEL
BRZ2EERTRERE ARG TREILH
PAKERBERARERENEERIIMEE XA
HREHEEGLEMNDS RERAKELRER
BREME N -
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The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group) options to
subscribe for shares of the Company, subject to a maximum
of 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the adoption date and as at the approval date of
refreshment from time to time, excluding for this purpose
shares issued on the exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the Board and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company's
shares, (i) the average of the closing price of the shares
quoted on the main board of the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the grant date and
(iii) the closing price of the shares on the grant date.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee of the Share
Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within 21 days
from the date of grant. The exercise period of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board upon granting the options but in any event must
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The exercise period of options granted was disclosed
belows.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The Board may
seek approval by the shareholders at general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number of
shares available for issue under exercise of options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme in these
circumstances must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshment of the 10% limit.

On 27 May 2016, the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of 10% limit of the grant of
options under the Share Option Scheme. After the grant
of 64,000,000 options on 13 July 2017, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 88,447,852 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 4.85% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. The
closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before 13 July 2017, on which the share options were
granted, was HK$0.245 per share.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time and the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue for the
time being in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of offer of the grant.

During the Year, no share option was lapsed, cancelled and
exercised.
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Details of the share options movements during the Year RAFE BRESIFBRATZEREZFE
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: wmr
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of Exercise Balance Granted Balance
grant of Price Exercise as at during as at
Name or category of grantees share options (HKS) Period  Vesting Period 1/1/2018 the Period 31/12/2018
R=F-N%F RZB-N\F
B e -B-H B +t=A=t+-8
HEHARARR BRERH (B¥7) i ERH k] THERH &

Executive Director and beneficial owner
of a substantial shareholder of the Company

FRAHTEEREERRZREREAA

Liu Zhongxiang 13712017 0.25 13712017 - N/A 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
12/7/2022 AER

HkE

Directors

Bz

Liu Feng 13/712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
12/7/2022 TER

28

Chen Xian 137712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
12712022 @R

HE

Lau Sai Chung 137712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
12/7/2022 iyl

i

Poon Lai Yin Michael 13/712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
12/7/2022 TER

EBE

Char Shak Ngor Stephen 137712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
12712022 @R

EH%

Li Jiansheng 137712017 0.25 13/7/2017 - N/A 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
12/7/2022 iyl

TEE

Former Director

HEES

Xia Dan 13772017 0.25 13712017 - N/A 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
12/712022 TEA

Xia Dan

Other employees

HittfES

In aggregate 137712017 0.25 13112017 - N/A 19,000,000 - 19,000,000
121712022 @R

A

A 7N

Total 64,000,000 64,000,000

&5
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under
age of 18) to have any right to subscribe for securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Director had interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules,
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the Year with the Code Provisions of CG Code.
Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent event after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge or its Directors
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Poon Lai
Yin Michael (Chairman), Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and
Ms. Li Jiansheng. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management and the external auditor
the financial reporting matters including the annual results
for the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018:

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Ms. Li Jiansheng, the
independent non-executive Directors, have entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 29 August 2018 and the
remuneration packages remained unchanged, respectively.

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen, resigned as an independent
non-executive director of National Investments Fund
Limited (Stock Code: 1227), the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
20 November 2018.
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The shares of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company
Limited (Stock Code: 8622), which Mr. Poon Lai Yin
Michael, the independent non-executive Director, acted
as the executive director and chief financial officer, have
been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 13
December 2018.

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1239),
the shares of which are listed on the main board of Stock
Exchange, with effective from 19 March 2019.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

On Behalf of the Board

Liu Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019

Report of Directors

EEEHE

EFEMEBERER AR (BRH KR :
8622 ' BUIRTESELCELERZ R AIIE
FHRTESTRYBRE)ROKER=ZE—N\F
T+ A+=ARBRFERET-

ERB S EC B L ATeamway International
Group Holdings Limited ( B3 5% : 1239 -
HRDREZMERET) 2BIIRNITES
BE-E—hAF=ZAt+hBREK-

3]

ARBRNEERRBFRE LIRE—BRZE
R UNERRH-BERNGFEITAERRR
2 1 BLED o

RREES®

28
E

B —E—NF=ZA=-++tH

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #El L#&EBARAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\££H

85



Independent Auditor’s Report

B A BE R

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
PELEREESRA A

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 94 to 207, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter

B AR E

RRFXEE

REBRMANEXZHE BARELFASRMAEF
RAHRGEAMBERERTERERZIFH %
EFHRINBMEZBEBRAV BRI KENX
BPBENERSETRE MERMISEHZ
FERREHEBFNER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREXSEE MARERREREZEE
Revenue recognised from sale of properties MYEHERI 2 W H

We identified revenue recognised from sale of properties
as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and there is judgement involved
in determining the appropriate point at which to recognise
revenue from sale of properties.

MR EHERRA I WA HGRABRRRZIEEUR
METHERAVEHERRZ BEMHR L LA &
MY EHEERZ B ERA RAREZEFE -

The Group's revenue from sale of properties for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB88 million, representing 98% of the Group's total
revenue. As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, revenue from sale of properties
is recognised when the development of the relevant
properties have been completed and the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer.
HE-Z-N\F+A=+—HLEFE- E£EY
FHEZWHm /K ARYKS88,000,0007T 15 EXE
KR 298% - BMNFE A M BERMEMISMEE D
FHEZWAaRN TR BEREUDEFEE RIWEL
THIEDBETRR -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from
sale of properties included:

BPERAYDEHERRAZIREZEFER:

e Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
Group's internal control over the process of revenue
recognition of sale of properties; and

s THWEHNE EEEAHEMMEHEBRANE
B zABRERE: &

e Assessing whether the criteria for the delivery of
properties have been fulfilled by checking, on a
sample basis, to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements, the relevant completion certificate for
construction work, as well as the delivery notices
issued by the Group to the buyers to assess whether
the control of properties are transferred to the
buyers.

s MMEKEEFEEIVENREZSEREE
ERENGRR BEEIEREBATKESE ALK
EERFNEYMEERETIEREEEETEAMMA
BERBHORMBEEK-
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Key audit matter

HEERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

WARBEZTEEZER

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with significant judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group's investment properties in People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), amounted to RMB88,962,000. A loss
arising from fair value change on investment properties
of RMB4,853,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.
HRRENMEEARUBERBGEUBREZZEENR
HETAABERRZERAE RMBEREMEZH
BERNAEREREE R_ZE-\F+_A=+—
B ESERPEARHENE ([FE])ZELED
¥ B ARMS88,962,000 EHE-ZE—N\NF+= A
=ET—HLEFE ERGEERRAERREMEL
AREZHEE 2 FIBAKRY4,853,0007T

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair
value based on a valuation carried out by an independent
professional property valuer (the “Valuer”). In determining
the fair value of investment properties, the Valuer has
used direct comparison approach by making reference to
comparable sales evidences as available in the relevant
market to reflect current market conditions as of the end
of the reporting period. The key input used in valuing the
investment properties by the Valuer is market observable
transactions of similar properties.

WA E M BEREAM T4 RE  ZEFEREMETIR
BEVEZYEMGEM ([HEM])ETZHERR
ARENER - RETREVEZAALER  HEMEF
AEELBEZT2ZREMS CAARZAILERIEE
BE CURMEZEHRERARZFEITHR - HEMEHRKR
BYMEETHERMERZERBAARBEREUY
EZHMBAIBRRS -
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REWEZHE

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

ZMHERRENMEZAEZREFBHE:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o fAHERMIBEREE AN

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation; and

s THREEMMNMEERE MEMSBHNRR
EXRANBRKETIBRGABBNBELEZH
BELBAE ML HE M &

e Assessing the accuracy of information provided by
the management to the Valuer by checking to the
sales prices of comparable properties, on a sample
basis.

e FERMERAABEAELBYWECEE &M
A EREEMAEMEEEN 2 EE1t-



Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

B AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREREE MARERREZEE
Valuation of properties held for sale BIEHEMEZHE

We identified the valuation of completed properties held
for sale (the "PFS”) as a key audit matter as it is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and significant
judgements are involved in the determination of the net
realisable value (the "NRV") of the PFS.
HRFIEHEZEERDE ([HELEWE]) 2
ENGFREMBERRCEZULINETHIELEYME
ZASEFE (AR FE])KFRERALR &
P HBRREREREE-

The Group’s PFS of approximately RMB1,312 million are
situated in the PRC as at 31 December 2018 as disclosed
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. The
management of the Group determined the NRV of the PFS
with reference to the estimated market prices of the PFS
and valuation performed by the Valuer, which takes into
account a number of factors including the current market
prices of properties of a comparable standard and location.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HB EBEEHARK
1,312,000,000C 2 FEHEW RN F B (B4R
EHMBMERMIT16FAHKE) - BEEEERENGTR
ZHAR (BEABAEALBEREERUEZMEZS
AIME)R2ERELEME MM E RGEME
TZEEEERELEMEZAIZRFE-

Our procedures in relation to valuation of the PFS
included:

BMBABRIFLENEZREZRFERE:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o IEEEMZEN BEHREHE

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation;

e MEEMTHRHEERE MEMBRE K
MZEABRR HEMKAZEIEGAENMLE
1B 2 BN H & s & BUE

e Assessing the accuracy of information provided by
the management to the Valuer by comparing details
of existing lease agreement, on a sample basis; and

s BBRMEEENRBEFHEOFE AHER
BrfhEMMEH BN 2 ERML : R

e Assessing the management'’s estimation of the NRV
of the PFS, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling prices of the PFS to the recent
market prices achieved in the same project or by
comparable properties, based on our knowledge
of the Group’s business and the PRC real estate
industry.

e HMHMEEE BAULBELEMERMGESE
EEREE AR ETHNTHER R
BHERMY EXEEEXBRTBEEMETENT
oA EREEHRELEY R AR FEN
5t
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B A BE R

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

B AR E

REARBEEE ESBZHMBHEHmE
REMRERGSMBRRAREZEL

BMNEBERSEERESRAMBERRERME
EETFEARNKFRERMERN I EANHER
Rt - W RBHE PO EZBIERERZBK
RELBERMER 2 RBERSE Rt 250
PIEEME A - RMA TSR ANRERET W I
HWALTE PR EENEE-ARETES
BRZZE HEREFBEEAENETZER
THEBMTITRBEERBEMFEZIEARAERR
att - $8 FR BR ot 7T (R HRRF 3K #R AR A A fi B R
IEBERBECEBHBRATAREEREREZ
EREMBRRFLIEERER  AERS
EXERRA -

REZEEFTEMETERS RMEREX
HE YREBEEZBREPRFEIRIERE
JE o B AP

. BRI R EEARRFERERMEBTES
MBRRFEERERRAZ AR &R
ARRTEREFARBZ SRR LA
LEBRARRBEZERZRIE ERE
PER2ER ANRFFARESIRER
s EEER  ERERMSOZE R RE
B 2 150 - B Itk oK B % 3R A B FE 1 & 2
ZEARBERBGAHRER SN REERE
HERM B 2 EAHERRM A AR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tsz Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2019

B AR E

BRTRAEBEEEAREFLER SHARMEN
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F “T—tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE AR®FR AREFT
Revenue Ygs 5 90,251 615,899
Cost of sales SHEMA (74,627) (496,338)
Gross profit E7 15,624 119,561
Other income Hi WA 7 413 296
Fair value change on investment properties REMEZANEE 14 (4,853) 43,644
Fair value change on held-for-trading investment ~ B{EX SRR ZBREZ AAEE S - (13)
Fair value change on financial asset at fair value BRARBHABR MBEEZAR
through profit or loss BE (6) S
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHER (6,445) (7,796)
Administrative expenses THER (31,299) (35,477)
Finance costs BB A 8 (2,798) (6,701)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRETAT (B 1R) A A (29,364) 113,514
Income tax expense FTEREY 9 (6,656) (60,898)
(Loss) profit for the year R (&8 ER 10 (36,020) 52,616
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: WTEGEER (BE)&RF:
Owners of the Company ARAIZHERA (34,461) 44,702
Non-controlling interests JEfE I R (1,559) 7,914
(36,020) 52,616
(Loss) earnings per share (in RMB cents) Sk (BE) R (ARED) 13
- Basic —HK (2.16) 293
- Diluted —%% (2.16) 2.93
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEsRkEMEEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F “T—tF
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
(o AR®FR ARBFT

(Loss) profit for the year FEN (BB & (36,020) 52,616
Other comprehensive (expense) income Htn2m (BI%) Wi
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ HTBEH P HEERZEH -
Exchange differences arising on translation of B EERER

functional currency to presentation currency 2 ERELVELER 9,482 (7,574)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HENEEG A EERm s HE -

profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of EHREBIINER 2

financial statements of foreign operations UBBRREECELER (11,802) 9,844

(2,320) 2,270

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year FR2ME (FY) WS (38,340) 54,886
Total comprehensive (expense) income NTEG2E (Fx) Rags:

attributable to:

Owners of the Company RRBIZHAA (36,781) 46,972

Non-controlling interests JEfE I R (1,559) 7,914

(38,340) 54,886
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR TR

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\E+-HA=+—H

2018 2017
—BE-NFE —ET—+F
NOTE RMB’'000 RMB'000
e AR®TFR ARETFT
Non-current Assets kREBEE
Investment properties REME 14 88,962 93,815
Property, plant and equipment EN S E L 15 19,051 19,030
108,013 112,845
Current Assets REBEE
Properties under development TR 16 - 744,072
Properties held for sale FIELEYE 16 1,311,519 394,860
Other receivables H th jE W FR IR 17 10,875 83,328
Financial asset at fair value through BAREFAEBR
profit or loss MG EE 21 -
Held-for-trading investment FIEXSRBZIRE - 27
Tax recoverable AT Y (@] 7 I8 6,512 =
Restricted bank deposit BREERITER 18 8,169 8,015
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITER 19 38,085 12,908
Bank balances and cash RITEGFE R 19 52,422 26,322
1,427,603 1,269,532
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e~ IR 20 71,455 564,953
Contract liabilities AHEE 21 766,958 =
Loan payables JERTE K 22 33,225 16,656
Amount due to a director JENEERE 29 2,862 2,714
Tax payable FET R IR - 20,919
Secured bank borrowings BEMIBEITER 23 11,776 119,304
886,276 724,546
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 541,327 544,986
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BEERBRRBAS 649,340 657,831
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEEE 24 55,841 63,436
Net Assets EEFE 593,499 594,395
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2018 RA=—ZE—N\E+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—BE-NFE —ET—+F
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
ME  AR®Tx ARBTET
Capital and Reserves EXR#EE
Share capital N 25 161,569 136,015
Reserves s 395,453 420,344
Equity attributable to owners of RRARZHEE NEILER
the Company 557,022 556,359
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR R 36,477 38,036
Total Equity e 4R 593,499 594,395
The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 207 FIUE207/BEZHEEMBHRER_ZTE-—NF=
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of At tHEZESghEREENE AT
Directors on 27 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf JEERKREE:
by:
Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Lau Sai Chung
Bkt )it Bkt
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
0 EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

SmEREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE —

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRRZRBAELES
Share Non-
Share Share  Translation options  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
BiRE FEHY
BR& B EE BERE e 2itEE NGt i ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F-F—H 136,015 567,100 (42,276) - (156,933) 503,906 30,122 534,028
Profit for the year EREN - - - - 44,702 44,702 7914 52,616
Exchange differences arising on REEthngs
translation of functional currency EIEREEL
to presentation currency ERES - - (7,574) - - (7,574) = (7,574)
Exchange differences arising on RAEENEB
translation of financial statements of ~ BIHRELZ
foreign operations EREE - - 9,844 - - 9,844 - 9,844
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEREER = = 2,270 = 44,702 46,972 7,914 54,886
Recognition of share-based payment AARN RE
expenses (note 26) Wi FE (HiFH6) - - - 5,481 - 5,481 5 5,481
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t%
+-A=1+-H 136,015 567,100 (40,006) 5,481 (112,231) 556,359 38,036 594,395
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (34,461) (34,461) (1,559) (36,020)
Exchange differences arising on RENEEKIRERZS
translation of functional curencyto EHELZERZEE
presentation currency - - 9482 - - 9,482 - 9,482
Exchange differences arising on ARG BN B B RE
translation of financial statements of ~ E4£Z[EH £H
foreign operations - - (11,802) - - (11,802) - (11,802)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERR AR
for the year - = (2,320) - (34,461) (36,781) (1,559) (38,340)
Issue of new shares (note 25) BTHR (F3E25) 25,554 12,777 - - - 38,331 - 38,331
Transaction costs attribute BOTRNEGERAKE
t0 the issue of new shares - (887) - - - (887) - (887)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F
+-A=+-H 161,569 578,990 (42,326) 5481 (146,692) 557,022 36,477 593,499
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NF Z—ZZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTR ARBTET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R SEE)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B51E) & A (29,364) 113,514
Adjustments for: AEIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- RERREITE 949 837
Fair value change on held-for-trading investment ~ #{EXX 5 ik 2
REZ AR EEE - 13
Fair value change on financial asset at fair value BARBEFABECHMBEE
through profit or loss WA/NIV K- 6 -
Fair value change on investment properties REMEZ ANEES 4,853 (43,644)
Finance costs B 7% AR 7K 2,798 6,701
Interest income F BUW A (413) (296)
Share-based payment expenses AR D BERE A RFEZ - 5,481
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHE 2
working capital KERERE (21,171) 82,606
(Increase) decrease in properties held for sale FHELEME (M) (916,659) 446,549
Decrease in other receivables A i YR IB R 72,477 52,881
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 I i FE A FRIE R A (48,612) (175,531)
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEM 321,496 -
Increase (decrease) in properties under development TEZE¥ZIE 0 (L 4>) 750,413 (384,098)
Cash generated from operations KREMBHEE 157,944 22,407
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Enterprise 2t EFE AR LME ([FE])
Income Tax (“EIT") paid ERMEH ([EEMER]) (11,151) (8,083)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid BB L i E R
(T EER]) (30,531) (24,657)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETHME (A REFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 116,262 (10,333)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHRE R IEITFER (43,502) (54,871)
Placement of restricted bank deposit BEHAERHRITFER (154) (127)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BWEREE (119) (1,718)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R ERBITER 18,325 76,007
Interest received 2R & 413 441
Repayment of consideration payable EEENRE - (16,942)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REES (FTA)MEREFH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (25,037) 2,790
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFTTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITERK (208,960) (163,226)
Interest paid SERRAESS (9,139) (12,207)
Repayment of loan BEEX (8,438) =
Expenses on issue shares BITRR M 7 X (887) -
New bank borrowings raised MEE ZIRITERK 100,546 149,498
Issue of new shares BT 38,331 -
New loan raised MEEZER 23,478 17,342
Repayment to a director A—ZEFENX - (446)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE AR ESEE (65,069) (9,039)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND HeERBEESEEYZEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) F5 26,156 (16,582)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXEH o (56) 109
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZEHERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26,322 42,795
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZBEER
AT END OF THE YEAR, REEEY
represented by bank balances and cash HhBRERITEFLRRSE 52,422 26,322
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.  GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

China Uptown Group Company Limited (“the Company”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development
and investment as well as trading of raw sugar. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

1. —REMREREE

TEREMEEERAR ([ARR])IRHAE
HEEMKIZZHBRARARAMERNES
BHAXZMERRAR (TEBBRM]) XK
EH-ARBZEMPEER TR ERMUD
REBRFPZIRAER] —HWE-

ARFREBEERRR -ARAREWEB QA
(RBRIAEE N IZREVERREERE
AERBEES EXTEMWMEBRR 2 EBHNE
B BmMRME32
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15

Amendments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs

2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment
Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively
only to contracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Sales of properties
o Leasing of investment properties

Revenue from sales of properties is accounted for under
HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018, whereas revenue from
leasing of investment of properties continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 17 Leases.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 3 and 5 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position

2.

FERFR] B RMIEHRELER (
SR |) REMBET (&)

[ & &

REEBRFERZHATEEBMBRELEAREE
7 (&)

BEBUBHEEREISHERXEEFEHZ K

(%)

G IE BB B8 &R E 155 5| 22 ZE B
=23

=

RZZF-NF-—A—B KU BRRKER
ZEHOCIFENTHAE - RFFARZEHTE L
BEH-

HEEHBRERZZE

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
BERMK
WEER
SE AR EISHEET
—E—tF R=ZB-NF
+=ZBA=+—H —H—H
ERZEREE EFNSE ZREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFTT ARBFTT
Current liabilities Bk A=Ni
Trade and other payables B 5 MEAMENFUR 564,953 (445,462) 119,491
Contract liabilities BREE - 445,462 445,462

Note: As at 1 January 2018, receipt in advance from customers of
RMB445,462,000 in respect of contracts relating to sales of
property and sales of raw sugar previously included in trade

and other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15 (Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the current year
for each of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position

2. ERHTEBMBHREER

(T&EH
SR |) REMBET (&)

REEBRFERZHATEEBMBRELEAREE
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Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RERER
B R 2R
MEHK HAE  FIHEzeHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFTT ARBFTT
Current Liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H e 3R 71,455 766,958 838,413
Contract liabilities BHAE 766,958 (766,958) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

2. EAFTEEBUBREER ([FEH

(
SR |) REMBET (&)

REEBRFERZHATEEBMBRELEAREE
7 (&)

BEBUBHEEREISHERXEEFEHZ K
(%)

G IE BB B8 &R E 155 5| 22 ZE B

Z(#E)

HEeREnBRZHE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RXERER
BB EER
mERK FAE  FIHRzeE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Operating cash flows EEESR B2 RERENE
before movements in
working capital
Decrease in trade and B 5 R E e IR D
other payables (48,612) 321,496 272,884
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 321,496 (321,496) =

The application of HKFRS 15 has no significant impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue in the current year and
accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and financial guarantee;
and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
Impairment under ECL model

Except for those which had been determined as credit
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for the Group's financial
assets at amortised cost, including restricted bank deposit,
pledged bank deposits, other receivables and bank
balances, are assessed on 12-month expected credit losses
("12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, no
additional credit loss allowance has been recognised
against accumulated losses as the amount involved is
insignificant.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017

Cycle!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

. Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modification,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
own use while other operating lease payments as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be both presented as
financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease
payments will continue to be presented as investing or
operating cash flows in accordance with the nature, as
appropriate.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application,
if any, to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB16,000 as disclosed
in note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases will be recognised as
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")/held-for-trading investment, which are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE =T —\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from sales of properties

For revenue from sales of properties, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when control of completed property is
transferred to the customer, being at the point that the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised when the
properties are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development and properties held for
sale

Properties under development and properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of land, development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined by the
management based on prevailing market conditions and
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development are transferred to properties
held for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from properties held for
sale to investment properties when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the inception of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties, including
those held for sale, are measured at fair value using the
fair value model. All of the Group's property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

3. EEEREE(#&)

HEMERFEHENE

EEMERFELEDERKARAERFE
EDOEEEIR - KABELARA P

REEDAEEBRBRITMNEE A&
EERMBBATINAREERTXA -

EEZMERERNRERERFIELEDE-

AEERAEERFBAVEARBES R, R
EREAEE(MIRBEERXRHTBEFRLE)
B B ERBELEDEEREZREDE
(BERBRTZ—ITHNRKEHERKR) HEHEA
HeMEAAREBEALHEREEZANEMAZE
ENERER-

REME

REMEDFERDES R HEREREE
GRS

BREMEVNLREA (BREFMEEEIER)
AE-RUFERR REVE (BREFBIELE
BREME)DERAABERERAAETE -
AEERBELEHERFERRES R HE
AEEREZHMANERETIDBERAERSY
ERELERAAANEEEFE-REVELR
BEEHELZWEABEAAEMEESHMEZ

B

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #El L#&EBARAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\££H

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and buildings elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land
is under finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised and included in
finance costs in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expenses or capitalised in
properties held for sale/properties under development,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollar while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB") for consistent presentation
as prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\F£#

3. EEEREE(#&)

MBITA(E)

MBEE
HBEEEZDBERARTE (REN F22 B8R IF
X [EBE BRI B EERFIT1Z)

R T 5 2 B R A B
=

REMNARBRANASRENEBER
THRENMBEE: &

o

. BHRBERTRETEHRELENRESRS
MERINAERRKEEREHHNE

HaTIGEt M BEEEREARETAR
feERE (RAREFARMBEE RaE])

SHE

. REBEBMENRERER B EERE
MZEBRATHBENYBEE: &

o

. BRBERTRETEHRELENRESRE
MERINAERRKEEREHHNE

FTEEMMBEEREREANE ARRG
EMM-—BRARELIFEFEIZHE T
ENBEMBERELRNEIREFSHBERD
EBEHPRBIMERNIARE KUK
BEVRER VLHERBH AEEA A
W EREEHMEmBRET 2IRARER
RENEERES-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE =T —\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.
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e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend earned on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including other receivables, restricted bank deposit,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and financial
guarantee contracts.) The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

For all instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE =T —\F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument'’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; or

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings or in
case of other receivables, when the amounts are
past due, whichever occurs earlier. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(i

(ii)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the fair
value change on held-for-trading investment
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 36(d).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
restricted bank deposit, pledged bank deposits,
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit periods
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
loan payables, amount due to a director and secured bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018); and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have been in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. For those investment properties in the PRC,
the deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties are recognised taking into account LAT Tax and
EIT payable upon sales of those investment properties in
the PRC.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by an independent professional
property valuer.

In determining the fair value of investment properties
situated in the PRC, the valuer has used direct comparison
approach by making reference to comparable sales
evidences as available in the relevant market to reflect
current market conditions as of the end of the reporting
period.

In relying on those valuation reports, the directors have
exercised their judgements and are satisfied that the
methods of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions. Note 14 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of investment
properties.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision of
the LAT is based on the management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its
LAT calculation with the tax authorities for its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the period in which such
tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties held for
sale

The management of the Group determines the net
realisable value of properties held for sale by using
prevailing market data such as most recent sales
transactions and internal estimates of cost based on quotes
from contractors. These estimates require judgement as
to the anticipated sale prices by reference to the valuation
performed by an independent professional property valuer
and recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate
of new property sales, marketing costs (including price
discounts required to estimated for sales), the legal and
regulatory framework and general market conditions. If the
actual net realisable value of properties held for sale are less
than expected as a result of changes in market conditions,
material provision for impairment losses may result. At 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of properties held for
sale was RMB1,311,519,000 (2017: RMB394,860,000). No
impairment has been provided for both years.
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4. BREFTHERMEFTABEENE
BERR (&)

R THBAEENETERR (&)

FFEL EWE 2 145 T2 5 FE

AEEEREEEZAFTAROHEERZEEN™
BHBEREREAEZETREMIEZ RE K ARG
P EEREHEMECTERFE - ZF M
AERSERBUEXEYMEMBEMET ZHEER
MLuEZﬁ%%EH% NMEHEER M5
HERA (BRREMETEHEMS CERTM) &
BEREEEBRE —MMAHEBEHREE Wi
EREMEZCERUER FEARNMAZE LT
ERBEH BlkeENEANBREBSERE K
*T—A$+ A=+—H BEHEMHELZ
FEEEAARK1,311,519,000c (Z & —+
F: AR#394,860,0007T) ° Z M 8 F E AL
W IRBERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE 5 W=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BE-E-NF+ZA=+—-BHLFE
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from () EBEFEXNZEDHK

contracts with customers
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the AEEFAzZW=ATHOT:
year is as follows:

2018
—EB-N\fF
RMB’000
ARBT R

Sales of properties M HE 88,324
Rental income HEWA 1,927

90,251
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

For contracts entered into with customers
on sales of properties, the relevant
properties specified in the contracts are
based on standardised specifications with
no alternative use. Taking into consideration
of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent,
the Group concluded that the Group does
not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties
is therefore recognised at a point in time
when the development of the relevant
properties have been completed and the
properties have been delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreements.

The Group receives 100% of the contract
value as receipt in advances from customers
when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. Such advance payment schemes
result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the property construction period
for the full amount of the contract price.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

(iii)

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2018 and the expected timing of
recognising revenue are as follows:

Wik (%)
BE-2-/\f+-A=+-BLFE
(%)

(i) DEEEFEXNZEHE TEAYEEHX
ZE

N

R-_FE-—N\FE+-_A=+—HB'%
REHRTEONEENRZE (KE
BBy RFE) RAMER K E
T

Sales of
properties
MEHE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Within one year

766,958
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F
5. REVENUE (Continued)
B. For the year ended 31 December 2017

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

5. W (&)
B. ®HE-T—t&+-A=+-ALEE

AEBFRARSESTAT

2017

—E—+tF

RMB'000

ARET T

Sales of properties VI E 546,659
Sales of raw sugar FEHESHE 68,558
Rental income WA 682
615,899

The amount of direct outgoings in relation to the leasing of
properties is insignificant.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. the executive directors of the Company) (the “CODM")
in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess
their performance.

The Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are identified as the follows:

o Property development and investment: this segment
primarily develops and sells office premises,
commercial and residential properties. This segment
also generates rental income from investment
properties and achieves gain from the appreciation
in the properties’ values in the long term. All the
Group's activities in this segment are carried out in
the PRC.

o Trading of raw sugar: this segment trades raw sugar
on a worldwide basis.

Property development and investment and trading of raw
sugar also represent the Group’s reportable segments.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ELBEmARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

e IR R MR

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

hS

6. AN (EF)
(@) A EUEREE

AEBBmREEZOMBEERARE D

results by operating and reportable segment. ERIN N
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE-N\F+ZA=Z+-BHLFE
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Total
NERRRRE FRES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Revenue e 90,251 - 90,251
Segment loss DEEE (9,043) (2,486) (11,529)
Bank interest income AT BIA 413
Fair value change on financial asset at BRRAREFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss UBREEZAREE (6)
Finance costs BBAA (2,798)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEDARX (15,444)
Loss before taxation bR AT (29,364)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_T—+tFF+-A=1+T—BLFE
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Total
MEFRRRE RREES @t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
Revenue Yz 547,341 68,558 615,899
Segment profit 2 EE A 132,739 2,274 135,013
Bank interest income AT BIA 296
Fair value change on held-for-trading RERDRBZEREZ
investment AREZD (13)
Finance costs BBAA (458)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEDARX (21,324)
Profit before taxation B AR 113,514
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss of each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, fair
value change on financial asset at FVTPL/held-for-trading
investment, certain finance costs and unallocated corporate
expenses (i.e. central administration costs and directors’
emoluments). This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

6. ZEER(F)
(@) BUHBEREE(F)

REDMZ BT RRANIAIMAARTEER

BRER - 2 EEN B EES DA ARDER
THMBRA BRAABFABEZHBEE,/
FIERGRABZREZAAEREY ETHK
MARARDEARRAX (P RITHRERANRE
EMe)MEE 2N BR - KDHRETIE
RERRERBNRERDEMFANENER-

(b) SBEEREME

AEBEERBBZOMEREREED A2
ZIanE

okt

2018 2017
=E2E-N\F ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Segment assets NEEE
— Property development and investment —MEERREE 1,466,396 1,339,710
— Trading of raw sugar —RiEE S = 2
Unallocated corporate assets ROBBFEEE
— Financial asset at fair value through —EBARBERFABRZ
profit or loss AR 21 S
— Held-for-trading investment —FREXGRBEZRE - 27
— Bank balances and cash —RITEFNIRE 52,422 26,322
— Others —HAth 16,777 16,316
Consolidated total assets FEBEEMHE 1,535,616 1,382,377
Segment liabilities SEPBRE
— Property development and investment —MEERRIRE (891,357) (700,297)
— Trading of raw sugar —REEES = (33,559)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEERE
— Loan payables —ENER (33,225) (16,656)
— Amount due to a director —[ENESEFIE (2,862) (2,714)
— Tax payable —FE R IE - (20,919)
— Secured bank borrowings —BHRFRITER (11,776) (12,304)
— Others —HAh (2,897) (1,533)
Consolidated total liabilities rEBEBEReR (942,117) (787,982)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to segments assets other than
certain other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL/
held-for-trading investments, tax recoverable, bank
balances and cash and certain other assets; and

all liabilities are allocated to segments liabilities
other than certain other payables, loan payables,
amount due to a director, tax payable, secured bank
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and certain other
liabilities.

(c) Other segment information

6. ZEER(F)
(b) SPBEEREE(F)

REESBz2ENSHFERRENS>EERNH
-

. BETHEMERRE RAALEF AR
BLUBEE/BEXZREZIRE
AREHE - RTEFRRAEUNRET
HEEN MEEEADEENAE
E &

. BRETHMEMNFE BNER BNE
ERE - BANME FERMRTERE
EHRBRABEBRETHMABEIIN - FIEA

EHSPRESHEE

(0 HtaBEHR

2018 —E-NEF
Property
development Trading of raw
and investment sugar  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEBRRRE RREES AR CXi
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%TR AR®Tn  AR%TR
Amounts included in the measure of STERHERL S FEER
segment profit or loss or segment assets: BFAZHE -
Additions to property, plant and equipment  REWE  BiE &k 119 - - 119
Fair value change on investment properties &M%z AR EE (4,853) - - (4,853)
Finance costs BB A - - 2,798 2,798
Depreciation of property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment 395 - 554 949
Amounts reqularly provided to THRTZEEREEEM
the CODM but not included in the measure A T5FAGHE S BB &
of segment profit or loss or segment assets:  # S EEMFE :
Fair value change on financial asset BRAREFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEL AREED - - 6 6
Bank interest income RATHEHA (407) - (6) (413)
Income tax expense FERRAX 6,656 - - 6,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

6. ZEER(F)

()  Other segment information (Continued) (0 HthaHMER(£Z)
2017 —t
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Unallocated  Consolidated
NEBRRRE REES APE aft
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRT  ARETRT  ARETR
Amounts included in the measure of STERER# 2 "?ﬂﬁéﬂ%
segment profit or loss or segment assets: Bt AZFE
Additions to property, plant and equipment ~ RE % T%& 1718 - - 1718
Fair value change on investment properties &M EZ ARELD 43,644 - - 43,644
Finance costs BB 4,504 2,004 193 6,701
Depreciation of property, nE BERSERE
plant and equipment 3% - 443 837
Amounts reqularly provided to THRTZEEREEER
the CODM but not included in the measure 1875 AT €7 S 2
of segment profit or loss or segment assets:  # B EEMFE :
Fair value change on held-for trading RERGRGEZIREZ
investment RAEZH - - 13 13
Bank interest income FITFIBMA = = (296) (296)
Income tax expense FEBiAx 60,898 - - 60,898
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 100% (2017:
100%) of the Group's revenue and assets were derived
from customers and operations based in the PRC including
Hong Kong (by country of domicile) and accordingly, no
further analysis of the Group’s geographical information is
disclosed.

(e)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
are as follows:

6. DEER(F)
d) BEER

BHE-_Z2—N\F+_A=+—BLFE AR
REBE100% (ZFE—tF 100%)KERF X
BE W REEAMKRTE (BFESFH) (1
ARR) U EBEE-—FPEEASE Z2HE D
HERDMo

() FEFFEH

RERFEXRBEHASEREEERMERI0%
MEPZWEINT :

2018 2017

—E-NF —ZE—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Customer A (Note a) ZPA(Mzxa) - 68,558
Customer B (Note b) EFB (Mizkb) 42,465 -

Notes

(a)

Amount represented revenue generated from trading of raw
sugar to this customer and this customer did not contribute
any revenue of the Group in the year ended 31 December
2018.

Amount represented revenue generated from sales properties
to this customer and this customer did not contribute any

o -

(@) ZERERARFPETRBESELAZRRAZE
PREZEZZ-—N\FET_A=T—RHILFETESL
AREE B RMER Y E

(b) ZERERARFPETYEHEELZRRAZE
PREZE-_Z—+F+_A=+—RILFETESL

revenue of the Group in the year ended 31 December 2017. NE B H R s o
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hg A
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Bank interest income |RITHBHA 413 296
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBHAHA
2018 2017
—B-NFE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTRT AR®EFTTT
Interest expenses on MEFX:
— bank borrowings —RITIER 6,826 10,106
— loan payable —ERER 1,097 =
— receipts in advance —TEYRIE 1,216 1,738
Total borrowing costs FERT=E NN 9,139 11,844
Less: Amount capitalised in properties B ERMENERN 2
under development (6,341) (5,143)
2,798 6,701
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FRN - BREEREARE —RERHE®B -
general borrowing pool.
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEBIEAX
2018 2017
—E-NFE ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR ARBTT
Current tax B ERF I8
PRC EIT PEERAER 6,825 37,148
PRC LAT AR B+ Hb R (E A 7.426 32,610
14,251 69,758
Deferred taxation (note 24) EFERLIE (Ki5E24)
Current year KEEZ (7,595) (8,860)
6,656 60,898

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

/Q\
@<=

B

—BLE BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

9. FBHRAX (&)

ARREERRNERFEGHMAG R K2
TRRGEAVMBHRRAMEALTEKR - RWEF
B2BBREGR DM ERTEF 216.5%
AE-HRAEEZWALEEETBELENTE
KERB BRAEBRBBNESHELEE-

BEAEAREMBOCEMSREE ([DEH
BRE])RTCEMBFRAEHIEH R EFE
ERAEMBARNTEY E25% o

THIRERBRERERABTBEBBERLER
PR 2 MEEH e - THIEEHE B L 1E
EEER30%E60%HEE T R (EL B E (Y
wETRFANERLMER) o

REFBEEXMAEBRE B-FFTNEF-A—
B o BIFE R AR AU 5 A AT E R
ZBEHREHNR SRV BEHRRL AR S E
MEBARRENI B 2EREZRELEL
MIEEE BEAAEEENEF R ERER
ZEE MEREZEAETEN A AR RE
[E] o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FBBiMAX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

(BE)EMZHEMNT

RERNZRERXEESBR KT OB

2018 2017

—B-N\E —ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARS®TR ARBTET

(Loss) profit before taxation AT (B8 ) & (29,364) 113,514

Tax calculated at applicable tax rates (Note) REAMEFEZHIE (M5) (4,358) 30,000
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBRAZ 2 MG E

for tax purpose 5,362 6,836

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  FEFRFI WA Z FiiE 2 & (1) (1

Provision of PRC LAT for the year FAFE T HIBET R 7,426 32,610
Tax effect of PRC LAT deductible for PRC EIT At BEREAFRINR

A IR E R S8 (1,856) (8,153)

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised BB KRR 2 Fi B E 1B - (423)

Others HAh 83 29

Income tax expense e HiA > 6,656 60,898

Note: The weighted average applicable tax rate is 14.84% (2017: Mizk: MEFHBEABERB14.84% (Z T — £ F:

26.43%). 26.43% ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

10.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

10.

FR(ER) =R

FR(BR)RMZIARATZIA:

2018 2017
—EBE-NFE —ZET—+fF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11a) BEEHM (MEE11a) 7,128 11,041
Other staff costs HEf 8 ITKAK 4,089 7,803
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIFT B 5K 609 646
Share-based payment expense for other staff EMETURN BERS
XRX - 1,627
11,826 21,117
Auditor’s remuneration ZERN BN & 1,083 1,110
Cost of properties held for sale recognised BRRFAXHFELEMEKR
as expenses (included in cost of sales) (FFAHEA) 74,627 432,483
Net foreign exchange loss M BEEE 69 794
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment e G E 949 837
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment R\ KLHER S 29 28
11. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 11. EE - FETHRAEBREEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTETHAEMS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
(2017: eight) directors and the chief executive were as

ERkER L (ZE—+F: \(EEREE
TRABXNZBEMT:

follows:
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HEs BUnnES
Mr.POON  Mr. CHAR
Mr.CHEN M. LAU Mr. Mr. LIU Ms. Lai Yin,  Shik Ngor, Ms. LI
Xian  SaiChung  LIUFeng Zhongxiang ~ XIADan  Michael  Stephen Jiansheng Total
REEE HHBEE  HBEE YBWEE XADanzt BEBLE ZHRAE FREL: @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARETr AREFrn AR%TR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-E-N\§
TZAZ+-BLEE
Directors' fees vk - - - - - 152 152 152 456
Salaries and allowances e REg 1,848 1,667 2,131 768 50 = > = 6,464
1,848 1,667 2,131 768 50 152 152 152 6,920
Retirement henefits scheme contributions R /RiE R &4t 5 51 51 51 51 4 - 5 - 208
Total ) 1,899 1,718 2,182 819 54 152 152 152 7,128
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11.

(a)

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 1. EE FETHRAEREEHE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRFEFTHAEME (&)
(Continued)
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#7ES BUNTES
Mr.POON  Mr. CHAR
Mr. CHEN Mr. LAU Mr. Mr. LU Ms. Lai Yin,  Shik Ngor, Ms. LI
Xan  SaiChung  LIUFeng Zhongang  XIADan Michael Stephen Jiansheng Total
REAE HtBREE  HBEE YRMEE XADnkt BFEEEE EHERE FRERKL &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
For the year ended 31 December 2017  EZ=F-t%
tZA=t-BLEE

Directors' fees BSHe - - - - - 156 156 15 468

Salaries and allowances HeRzs 1,608 1,451 1855 668 618 = = = 6,200

Discretionary bonus BB 67 61 7 28 2% = = = 259

1,675 1512 1,932 696 644 156 156 156 6,927

Retirement henefits scheme contributions R ARAEFI5H &I 3t 52 52 52 52 5 = = = 260

Share-based payment expense DRABERN T AR 856 685 31 1,284 428 86 86 86 3,854

Total 5t 2,583 2,249 2,327 2,032 1,124 2142 242 21U 11,041

Notes: Bt At

0) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for @ J:Y)aﬁff\iﬂﬁ§$2@ﬂ(ﬁﬂiﬁiﬁ%ﬁé$ﬁETE_ﬁﬁ%‘%
their services in connection with the management of the BZEHEERGEM LXARBLFNITES
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent non- ZHENREFETARFEST ZREAH-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(ii) The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to (ii) EZ@‘J’%?E%IT&,@%%%Z?:?—_Aiﬁig—ti
the prevailing market conditions, corporate and individual +Z—RA=+—8 %Lti?izfﬁﬁﬁﬁ CRERMEA
responsibility and performance during the years ended 31 BERKRMETE
December 2018 and 2017.

(iii) Mr. Lau Sai Chung is also the chief executive of the Company (iii) %‘Jﬁ,ﬁf‘ﬁﬁzﬁ)‘%ﬂ&@ﬁ?ﬁlﬁ(%@ﬁ " PA b PR B EE 2 B
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services SEEEERSTRAZMEHRRB <ML -
rendered by him as the chief executive.

(iv) Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived or (iv) HE-T - \FR-ZT—tFTZA=+—HBLF

agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2017: four) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2017: one)
individual were as follows:

11. EE - FETHAEREEME
(%)

(b) EEM=

AEELERSME@INALH ORH(ZF
—tF WB)RARBZEETRETBITHA
B REZME R EXINE -Np—R (ZF
—tF:—R)EMALTZMEMT

2018 2017

—B-N\NE —T—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETT

Salaries and allowances e MoERh 926 873
Discretionary bonus BB e 4L - 73
Share-based payment expense R BERH IR - 514
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE FFT B R 51 52
977 1,512

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #El L#&EBARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 11. EE - FETHAEREENE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEMS (£)
Emoluments of the five individuals with highest TEEaMe@IALT (BEESR) 2N
emoluments including directors were within the following FATHER :
bands:

Number of individuals
(including directors and
chief executive)
BETEHE (BREER
FETHAER)

2018 2017
—E-NFg ZET—+F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately = % &% 1,000,000
RMB844,000 (2017: RMB867,000) (A& R4 A R#844,0007T
(ZE—tF:
AR #867,0007T) ) 1 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to  7&#1,000,0017tE
approximately RMB844,001 to RMB 1,266,000 75 #1,500,0007T (FHE R4
(2017: RMB867,001 to RMB1,301,000)) AR-44,001TTE AR #E
1,266,000 (ZZF—+t%F:
AR#867,001TE AR
1,301,0007T) ) 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to  ##1,500,0017C & /5 #&
approximately RMB 1,266,001 to RMB1,688,000 2,000,000t (8% K 49
(2017: RMB1,301,001 to RMB1,735,000)) AR®1,266,001 T2
AR #1,688,0007C
(ZE—+tF: ARK
1,301,001 TE AR ¥
1,735,0007T) ) - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to  7&#2,000,001 7t &
approximately RMB1,688,001 to RMB2,110,000 & %2,500,0007T (#8E M 47
(2017: RMB1,735,001 to RMB2,169,000)) AR 1,688,001t E
AR #2,110,0007T
(ZE—+%F:
AR¥1,735,001 T2
AR #2,169,0007T) ) 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (equivalent to  ##2,500,001 7t
approximately RMB2,110,001 to RMB2,532,000 /& %3,000,0007T (#8& R4
(2017: RMB2,169,001 to RMB2,602,000)) AR%2,110,001 T2
AR %2, 532,0007C
(ZF—LF:
AR #2,169,0017LE
AR #2,602,0007T) ) 1 3

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\F£#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

12. DIVIDEND

No dividends were declared and proposed by the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and dilutive (loss) earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

EE FETBRAEREEMNS
(%)

BE_ T N\ER-ZT—LtF+ZA
—t—BLEFE - AEEHERARQA
EERIBTRABRERRSMEE
AT EESRSIMARKMAR
SERZRSIIERBEBME-

11.

(c)

12. RE

RBE-_Z-N\FR-ZE—LtF+T-_A=+—
BILEFE ARAAHBESIKMESMERMK
B YERERRETEZZNEMNERE -

13. BR(ER)EF

ARAEBEABETRESREE (BB A
R To IR IR A T B8 5 5

2018 2017
—2-NF -—T-tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%T
(Loss) earnings (E1E) &R
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic and AT EARARREE AEBGEFR
diluted (loss) earnings per share for the year BREARREE (BB RF
attributable to owners of the Company ms < (BE)&BF (34,461) 44,702
Number of shares R&OEAE
Weighted average number of share for the R An pnE 19 8 (L AR E A I
purposes of basic and diluted (loss) earning e (BE)BNME)
per shares 1,598,503,397 1,524,478,520

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average
market price for shares for both 2018 and 2017.

AEEREERNBYBEBRRARF ZERE
BT RARZSTBEREZTEESNEN
RIE-NFR-_Z—tFMAFEZFHOD
EO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYWHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AREFTTT
FAIR VALUE ARE
At 1 January R—H— 93,815 =
Transfer from properties held for sale EREAFELHEME - 50,171
(Decrease) increase in fair value recognised RIERERZ ARE G ) =N
in profit or loss (4,853) 43,644
At 31 December ®“+=—A=+—H 88,962 93,815

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
of RMB88,962,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB93,815,000) have been arrived at on a basis of
valuation carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, an independent professional property valuer not
connected with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation.
Management works closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. Management reports the valuation
report and findings to directors semi-yearly to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

The independent property valuer adopted direct
comparison approach by making reference to comparable
sales evidences as available in the relevant market to reflect
current market conditions as of the end of the reporting
period to arrive the valuation of investment properties.
There has been no change to the valuation technique
during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the investment properties is
their current use.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ELBEmARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\F£#

KREBEKEMER-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—H
ZANIEAR®SS,962,000 T (— T —+
AR®93,815,00070) JhEREARE B E 7
Ezy‘ﬁiﬁﬁm%éﬁaﬂm%ﬁﬁéﬁ%.ﬂé%ﬁf‘ﬁ
ERARIETZEBEER -

REHEEZAAER AEBRBAIREZ
MZABEREE - HELEARZE —RBEAK
% W$$l§ﬁ”_ﬁA§Wﬁ@%Lﬂﬁ
B-EEERSGEBIMAEEMETEE N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14.

The key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
by the independent property valuer under the aforesaid
approach was market observable transactions of similar
properties. A significant increase in the market transaction

price used would result in a significant increase in fair value N o
measurement of the investment properties, and vice versa.

Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31

December 2018 are as follows:

REWME (&)

BYWEGEMBREAR T EEREYRET
EESERZEARGARERBUDEZT
BHBRXZ -MATEX5ERBEENSK
BEYREVEZAABAERBIEN RZTF

AEEREMEZFBRBEER-_ZT—N\F
T-A=1t—HZAREFAZEHBT:

Significant Fair value
Fair value Fair value Fair value  Valuation unobservable per square Significant inputs
Category hierarchy 2018 2017 techniques inputs meter to fair value
“E-N\Fz CZTtEFy EXTTRE
=¥l AREER DRl A EE R BARE DRE/FHK AREZERBAYE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Retail shops Level 3 88,962 93,815  Direct Comparison Adjusted Transaction ~ RMB22,000 The higher the adjusted
in the PRC Approach Price (2017: RMB23,200) transaction price, the higher
the fair value
RPBEZZEE F=& BERLEA BRERHE AE#22,0007T BRERSESE AAAE
(=F—tF:  #B
AR#23,2007T)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

BE_ZT-\FRk-_ZE—+tHF+-A=+—H

TFE HEBEAREHE=F-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. V¥ BERRE
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Motor
buildings improvements  Equipment Furniture vehicles Total
HETHEK
BT HERE EY ] HE bt Bg
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETR ARETRE ARETT ARETT AR®ETn
cosT KA
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-HA—H 21,492 941 1528 175 1293 25,429
Exchange realignment SR (1,415) (62) (100) (12) = (1,589)
Additions NE - - 20 - 1,698 1,718
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1—H 20,077 879 1,448 163 2,991 25,558
Exchange realignment RS 1,005 32 9% 8 = 1141
Additions AE = = 119 = = 119
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+=ZA=+—H 21,082 911 1,663 171 2,991 26,318
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitHE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&-HA—H 3,976 941 705 175 73 6,070
Exchange realignment 5 R (260) (62) (45) (12) = (379)
Provided for the year FREE 439 = 230 = 168 837
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+-H 4,155 879 890 163 441 6,528
Exchange realignment 5 R 208 Ly) ) 8 - 290
Provided for the year ERNEE 427 - 23 - 299 949
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1—H 4,790 911 1,155 17 740 7767
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=1—H 16,292 = 508 = 2,251 19,051
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1-H 15,922 S 558 = 2,550 19,030

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking into account
their estimated residual values, at the following useful lives or
rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 50 years

Over the shorter of the term of
the leases or 5 years

Leasehold land and
buildings
Leasehold improvements

Equipment 18% to 25%
Furniture 18% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10%

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong.

Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of RMB16,292,000 (2017: RMB15,922,000) have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

15. X -BERRE (£)

(@) LA L2 B R aREIE B To iR s R E AT R E
BERBATAEAFEHKFRABRLENE

HETHREF L E #5046
(AR EA%)

MEHE R EHKsF
(BB E BE)

B 18%%25%

RIE 18%%25%

yRE 10%

(b) HETHREFTHURERL -

(© HE L RIEF 2 BEREEAR16,292,0007T (=
T—+F: AR¥15,922,0007T) BEAR T AREE
—RERITEEZEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development are classified as current
assets as the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be completed in
the normal operating cycle. At 31 December 2017,
properties under development with a carrying value of
RMB554,997,000 were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Properties held for sale are situated on leasehold land in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at cost.

16. ERUERFFLHENE

HRETEADESZREEZCERHBENESR
KERHANER AN EEVERE D BRE
EBE-N-_ZE—+F+-A=+—HB EEE
B ANRMS54,997, 000t 2 EBZWECIEAR
FTAEE —RBITEEZER-

FIFLEMENDURTEZEE L -FTBE R
B E YR AR B -

17. OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. HiEWFEIE
2018 2017
—E-NF -T2 tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AR®BTT
Other receivables H th & YR IB 10,554 16,434
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERIRERRE (429) (407)
10,125 16,027
Deposits and prepayments e MBI HIE 750 66,086
Other tax recoverable H b a] Y B 7 18 = 1,215
750 67,301
10,875 83,328

Movement in impairment loss for deposits and other
receivables are set out as below:

12 e K&H M B YR IE 2 R B & 1B 2 B E 5 a0
T

2018 2017

—E-NE —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AR%¥TE

At 1 January R—HA—H 407 437

Exchange difference ERZER 22 (30)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 429 407
CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED it #BARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

The restricted bank deposit represents a guarantee deposit
for the construction of project required to be placed in a
designated bank account by the PRC Construction Bureau
of Maoming City. The amount will be released upon the
bank received the certificate of property ownership.

Restricted bank deposit carries interest at a market rate of
1.75% (2017: 2.25%) per annum.

19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB38,085,000
(2017: RMB12,908,000) have been pledged to guarantee
the mortgage loans granted by the banks to the customers
of the Group and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a market rate of
0.30% (2017: 0.30%) per annum.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.30% (2017: 0.01% to 0.385%) per
annum.

18. BRHB|ITER

ERFIBTEREEAFATREZTERBEE
ERTEFPAARIBERZAEZ %2 &
HRERITHER Y R PT B RERE R AR

ERBBITERIEZMBFENE1.75% (= F
—+F:225% )58

19. EERRTERRBTEEFRRAS

ABEARY38,085,000t (ZE—+F: AR
#12,908,0000) 2 E WM MR ITFHRE 1EE
B UERBITMASERPREEHZEBE
K ARDERRDEE-

EERFHERTEREMBEFFNE030% (ZF
—+F:0.30% )8

RITHEFRMBFFE0.01%E0.30% (=F
—+tF:0.01%=0.385% )it B °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 200 ESRHMEMSRE
2018 2017
—E-NF ZZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AR®TET
Trade payables g 5 RENKIA 445 36,641
Accrued expenditure on construction JEETIRERY 43,192 51,827
Other payables and accrued charges HtENRIBRESER 27,818 31,023

Deposits and receipts in advance from REMERE ke RTBKIAE

pre-sale of properties - 412,983
Receipts in advance from sales of raw sugar REREIHE 2B KIE - 32,479
71,455 564,953

Credit periods granted to the Group by suppliers range

from 0 to 90 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

HEBGS TAEEOEIORZIEER -

RBERRZEZRNRBERZEZARZEIZ

R DTN -

2018 2017

—E-NF —ZE—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%¥TE

Within 90 days 90AR LA 108 36,502
91 — 365 days 91E365K 213 139
Over 365 days B iA365K 124 -
445 36,641
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. EHEE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
—E2-N\#F —FN\F
+=A=+-8 —A—A*
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR¥T T AR®TF T
Sales of properties MEHE c 766,958 445,462
g The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from * ARABEBEEBEEERBEBMBREERE 155
the application of HKFRS 15. EHFAREBE -
Contract liabilities are not expected to be settled within the EHENEETERAEBEZ EEREEHA
Group's normal operating cycle. EE
Revenue recognised in the current year that was included in FARZE-N\F-A—HBNEHNEEEARD
the contract liabilities balance at 1 January 2018 amounted AEECDERAWE R AKESS,324,0007T °

to RMB88,324,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. LOAN PAYABLES 22. ERER

Loan payables comprise: ERNERBE:

()  Loan payable to an independent third party i) BN —Z2BILEFE=Z7TERXRAEREE
amounted RMBS8,784,000 (2017: RMB16,656,000) 8,784,000t (ZE—+F: AR¥
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum and 16,656,0007T) & KB A EEF - &
repayable on 30 April 2019. FME6%AE W ERFT-NFNA

=t+HEER-

(i)  Loan payable to a related party controlled by a (i) EBNARA-—REFESFZBETER
director of the Company of RMB24,441,000 (31 ARM24,441,000 (ZE—EF+=
December 2017: Nil) which is unsecured, interest- A=+—8B ' &) ZAXBEBLEERHF &
free and repayable on demand. BREBREKRKEE-

176 CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

23. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 23. HEAB|ITER
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Secured bank borrowings BHEFRITER
— Fixed-rate borrowings — B E F A& T = 107,000
— Variable-rate borrowings —IF BT R AE T 11,776 12,304
11,776 119,304
Carrying amount repayable within one year* JER—FAREEZREE 8,784 8,327
Carrying amount of bank borrowings HBEBRERERERE
that contain a repayable on demand clause ERUATHHEEZEZ
(show under current liabilities) but repayable*: RITIERZREE
(RARBBEEB TR
— within one year ——FR 1,245 7,997
— within a period of more than one year ——FRETHBART M
but not exceeding two years 1,301 51,025
— within a period of more than two years — MF &R B 4838 5 HAME
but not exceeding five years 446 51,955
Amount shown under current liabilities RRBREETHRER 11,776 119,304
& The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set g ZEDMFIENRBEER GBS FTEIEELR
out in the loan agreements. FTE-o

REBEZFBHERES
FEMFEFE2%5HE

The Group's variable-rate borrowings carry interest at 3
months Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2% per
annum.

X0 =8 A B RBRITRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

23. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 23.

(Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

BEARITER (&)

AEREBERZIERME (ETEEREGOFE)

to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are HEWT :
as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
Bz HE
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=f=+-8 +=B=+-A
Effective interest rate: B
— Fixed-rate borrowings lmﬂ—?—% = - 10.5%
— Variable-rate borrowings —F BB 3.08% to 2.78% to
5.48% 4.00%
3.08% % 2.78%%
5.48% 4.00%
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. IEIER I
2018 2017
—EB-NE —ET—+%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Deferred tax liabilities BILTRIBEE 55,841 63,436
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 24, GEETEHIE(£)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities RAHRBAERSHBE CEERNEIEZELEN
recognised and movements thereof during the current and BHREBERAEZEHWOT

prior reporting periods:

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Impairment properties
loss under
recognised in  development Change in
Accelerated respect and fair value of
LAT  depreciation of trade properties  investment
provision allowance  receivables  held for sale properties Tax losses Total
E5EN  EERUER
THRER REZERR BELENE  RENEC
BE NERERE REER 2ARERE  AAERD BEER Azt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tE-F-8 3578 4 540 (79.452) 2 3034 (72,29)
Transfer of investment properties from ERfELENFERRANE
properties held for sale - - - 8,085 (8,085) - -

(Charge) credit to profit or loss RE& (I8 EHA 2,529 @ (540) 24,787 (9,820) (3,034) 8,860
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF

+-E=1-8 1,049 - - (46,580) (17,909) - (63,436)
Credit to profit or loss MEREA 325 = = 6,178 1,092 = 7,595
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\#F

+-A=+-A 1374 2 = (40,402) (16,813) = (55,841)
At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses RZE-NE+_A=+—RH KREBELRH
of RMB35,999,000 (2017: RMB34,050,000) available for BREEEARE35999,000L (=T —+
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been F: AR®34,050,0007t) ] A {E# 85 K R a
recognised in respect of such losses as at 31 December FMeR=ZZFE—NF+_A=Z+—8B BHREXRX
2018 (2017: Nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit AR A BAN  TERZEBEBER
streams. Losses of both years may be carried forward BEEMBEE(ZZ—tF &) MEFEZ
indefinitely. BRI R A -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #El L#&EBARAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\££H

179



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

—NF+A=1T—HLEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. KX
Equivalent to
Number of HER
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
R BETT AREBFTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRER 10T EBR
Authorised: B
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and RZZE—tF-A—H"
31 December 2018 —T—+F+-A=t-HR
—E-NF+=ZA=1+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000 281,070
lssued and fully paid: BOIRBHR:
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 RIZ—tF-A—-BR
Z—+H&+-A=1+—H 1,524,478,520 152,448 136,015
Issue of new shares (Note) BT RN (FeE) 300,212,000 30,021 25,554
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+-_A=1+—H 1,824,690,520 182,469 161,569
Note: B 5T

On 14 September 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent, an
independent third party, to place 300,212,000 placing shares of the
Company of HK$0.15 each to not less than six placees who were
not acting in concert with connected persons of the Company. On 3
October 2018, the Company had completed the placing of new shares
under general mandate and conditions of the Placing Agreement
under which a total of 300,212,000 placing shares were successfully
placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.15 per share.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between
the Company and subscribers on 3 October 2018, 300,212,000
subscription shares of HK$0.15 each of the Company were subscribed
by subscribers for a cash consideration of HK$45,031,800 (equivalent
to RMB38,331,000). All subscribers were independent third parties.

All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then
existing shares in issue.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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RZE—N\FNLATHB ARRHE—ZRERE (BB
FE=RH)INEERZ ([BEEHE]) MR DORRBIIE
RN B R A+ — BT 2 AR A BL %300,212,0008% 7&K
AR BRAAESBISTZRERG R2E—N\F+A=
A ARRETHRBE —REEREFRN REEHZEZIF
% itk - A ££300,212,0000% R & i 15 B /B Bd E R I T %
BREBOISTZEEBEE T FPRANBEABA -

BRIBARBERBAR_Z—N\E+AZATLZRER
#% ' 300,212,000 AR A1 SR EEREK0. 157t 2 RBRHE
EREARE REREARBK45031,800T (HERAR
#38,331,0007T) T ERBAHYBBILE =T

FEEBTRNEERABERTRNESTEZERE
HofL o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on
30 November 2009 (the “Scheme”).

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the board of directors consider, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the adoption date and as at the
approval date of refreshment from time to time, excluding
for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.
The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and will not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (ii) the average
of the closing price of the shares quoted on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the grant date and (iii) the closing price of the
shares on the grant date.

On 13 July 2017, the Company granted a total of
64,000,000 share options to subscribe for 64,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company to certain
eligible individuals without vesting conditions.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the number of share
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme is
64,000,000. No share option has been exercised under the
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

26. B ERTE

ARBENR_ZEZAF+-A=ZTHRHK A
AT E ([&&rE)) -

ARRIAIAAER2EE (BREFTELRED
BREELABEHUAKEFLHERZAKHE
ERKRERRZEMNES FERTESF BB
BE- -EREE  oHE AR HER K
2 XEP - EBRBH AEEBEMH ABAR
RIS R ) REBREAZB AR 1
RZAURBBARBRBRET S HRABBRER
TRERZHEBRNDHETRAZI10% (F
BREMREBNTEBREMBFTORD) - R
BESOALAESEEEET EBTEERT
JIBEZE®E  (WVARBARODOEE (i)F
BERBERERLBEHMABAIZERET BB
FiT AT R B0 B SR M T (B - 2 (i) B8 AR I A
Hm M miE -

RZEBE-—tEtFLtA+=ZR - A2FARHEAEH
64,000,000 BRETETEEERAL A
#[#64,000,000 AR A FREEER0.107T
2 BB IR R

RZE—-N\FR_FE—+F+=_A=+—8"
BEZTEERHEBEDRTFEZERESRE B
64,000,000  HE=ZZTE—N\FR T —+F
+ZA=+T—HULEFE ZTEBETITERRK
TEEFTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
directors and employees during the year are as follows:

26.
FR EFRERRAZAAABBEL SR

BRERTE (&)

m

Number of share options

BREZE
Granted
during the
Outstanding year ended Outstanding
at 1 January 31 December at 31 December Exercise price
Category of participant Date of grant 2017 2017 2017 and 2018 Exercise period per share
REE R-Z—tF
RZB—t#F Bt RIB-N\F
—-A-B t=A=t-H t=A=t-H
SHREER REBH HATHE  LFERRH WATHE  TEH BRITEE
HK$
BET
Directors 13 July 2017 — 45,000,000 45,000,000 13 July 2017 to 0.25
12 July 2022
S e o3 T+ tAT=HE
+tA+=A B St s g =
Employees 13 July 2017 — 19,000,000 19,000,000 13 July 2017 to 0.25
12 July 2022
B8 e o3 “E—t+5tAT=HE
+A+=A B St sy g =
- 64,000,000 64,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) N/A 0.25 0.25
IETFHTHEE (B%T) TER
Note: All the above share options are exercisable on the grant date. Mizk: DA LPTARBRES A AR L A BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair values of the share options at the grant date, were
calculated using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Grant date 13 July 2017
Number of share options 64,000,000
Share price HK$0.25
Risk-free rate 1.194%
Expected volatility 45.34%
Time-to-maturity 12 July 2022

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over one year
and reference to the companies in the similar industry.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management best estimate, for the effect of
non-transfer ability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The fair value of the share options granted amounted to
HK$6,318,000 (equivalent to RMB5,481,000) in aggregate.
The Group recognised a total expense of the same amount
during the year ended 31 December 2017 in relation to the
share options granted by the Company.

e MR MR

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

26. B ERTE (&)

ERENREBSHZARENFER BB
HE -ZBERZHABBOT

BB E —tF+tHA+=H
e R 64,000,0001%
f% (& #0257
i 3| B A1) & 1.194%
T8 BB R @ 45.34%

2 8 i 1A T+t At+=-H
BEERBDRAARRRER —F2ELKE
WEEZRUTEZRARZELKIBEE - %R
UERcAFHeEREEEB 2 KRER
AR AAERE TERSLRITAFERRA
R ERBAR-

EREBREZ AALEBEAS X AEE6,318,000

ﬁ(ﬁ*%AE%5w1m®ﬂ NEBRE
—E—+tHF+_A=+—BLEFERAELRQR

%ﬁZﬁh%ﬁwmﬂﬁﬁz 1 X o

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED EFIJ:W%I’EI‘E"T
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\££H

183



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
its Hong Kong employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the subsidiaries
(the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The mandatory contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,500 per month. During the year ended
31 December 2018, a total contribution of RMB531,000
(2017: RMB572,000) was made by the Group in respect of
this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a state-
managed retirement plan for all its employees at a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees.
The state-managed retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired
employees. Under the state-managed retirement plan, the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
a total contribution of approximately RMB286,000 (2017:
RMB334,000) was made by the Group is respect of this
scheme.
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27. ERBEFIFE
&8

AEELHEERELHEATEANERES
EGAIRERNRESE - AERTEBR
ATEHEHARFE HABIUITATE -RIF®RTE
T8 SBEWBRA ([BRE])REREESE
AR EBEB Z5% 2 WA (&R B H M4
AREEEPIEHAFERFI - BEEREEZ
EHEERARAT A AEK1,500m AR -EHEZ
E-NE+_A=+—HLEE KXEEHRIL
e EH AR ARES3,000 (2 —+
F: AR#572,0007T) °

HE - BRE RN

BIBEFRBEMGOERERRE FENBARA
MAFMBREREMKE 2B KRKEFG S EL
HE - HRBEAREEAFENETES L -
BREKEFFEEBERMMERKES A
ERRKe HEEABEREKEBANFE 2T K
SERSFHIIITEHEMABTRERES I N
HERRERAEREME—PERE-HE-ZT
—NF+-_A=+—BUEFE AEB LT
EERBHEZIHOAREK286,000L (ZF —+
F: AR%334,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group as follows:

28. EHREE

RBERR AEB s ETEEREABTA
EERTEEEROT -

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT ARBTT
Leasehold land and buildings HELHREESF 16,292 15,922
Properties under development Y - 554,997
16,292 570,919
29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 29. BEIHE

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

HE-_Z-\FRZFE—+tF+HA=+—H
FEE EShEMFIFZEEERKE MW
T

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEERE 25 M
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%ETET
Salaries and other benefits in kind FaehEMEYN 7,845 7,873
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKAE FI 5T B R 207 312
Share-based payment expense AR RERN MR - 4,368
8,052 12,553

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Related party balances and transactions

Other than the disclosures in notes 11 and 22, and the
amount due to a director disclosed on the consolidated
statement of financial position which is denominated in
HKD, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand,
there were no other significant related party balances or
transactions.

EENTREEANBZFHaFHZESRE
BAXRBERTSBEEE -

BELGHRRRXZ

BRI 11 R 22T BE & RN A M AR R
BUALEGERLEER 2 NAKREBREER
ZENEZEFEIN BEEMNEMCERNBFET
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
RMB1,927,000 (2017: RMB682,000). The properties held
had committed leases mainly running for the one to three
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments.

30. RIE

REHERE

KEESH A
RERBEDM2DERLBEAAEARK

1,927,000t (ZE—+F: AR #682,000
) cFMEMEZHEBPEEN T —E=F-

W& R AR EE RE P AT I T A&
B &3 -

2018 2017

—B-NEFE —ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 2,203 1,851
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_FEERFT (BREEMT) 3,167 4,434
5,370 6,285

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises and equipment
under operating leases arrangements. Leases are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to five (2017:
one to five) years and rentals are fixed. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals and terms of renewal were
established in the leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

30. EiE(#)
REBEARE (&)

FEBEBABEA (E)

RBEHRR AEBRNZAABEREHE
THARKEBRENFAEWT

2018 2017

—E-NE —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE®TR ARBTET

Within one year —FR 10 12
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEZERF (BEEEMFE) 6 19
16 31

Other commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitments for properties under
development:

H fl &

RBEBBMR NEBEEMEZEREENR
™

2018 2017
—E-NFE Z—Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTFR ARETT

Contracted for but not provided BET4)1B R B = 249,161
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum obligation
in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
RMB632,271,000 (2017: RMB443,460,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties and pledged its bank deposits and properties
to the relevant banks. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalties owned by the defaulted purchasers
to the banks.

Under the above arrangement, the bank deposits were
pledged to the banks as securities on the mortgage loans.
Upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the bank deposits
and legal titles of properties and can realise the pledged
properties through open auction. The Group is obliged to
repay the banks for the shortfall if bank deposits and the
proceeds from selling the properties through the auction
cannot cover the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans, and ends upon
the earlier of (i) the issuance of real estate ownership
certificates to purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant properties; and (i) the settlement
of mortgage loans between the mortgage banks and the
purchasers.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant
at initial recognition and the directors consider that the
possibility of default of the parties involved is remote;
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception
of these guarantee contracts and at the end of the each
reporting period.
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31. HAREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

3. ARAEEMBLRRZFHE

RZFB-N\FRZF-—ELF+ZA=+—8HZ
FEMBAAFAENMAT

Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully
incorporation/  Class of paid capital/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation shares held registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/
FMAL/ BRIRARRAE/
WEAREE EEhY BFERGOER HMER FRRFEREERRLY TEEHR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —2—tF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# B E#% ik
Techwayson Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% - 100% ~ Provision of management
EEREBERAT B LR 10,0007 services
REERRS
Techwayson Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% - 100% - Trading of raw sugar
EEREFERLA 0 ERR 7B H10,0007 RiEZ 5
Maoming Huada Real Estate The PRC Contributed capital  RMB50,000,000 - 90% = 90% Development of real estate
Development Limited* # BABK AR #50,000,0007T in the PRC
(“Maorming Huada") REREREE
KETEARHERE
BRAA
* The English name is for identification purpose only * B HBEMRE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

FREJNARAEETAR/IBFENKERAN
BEZASBENBAR -ARREERRIIHME
MEBAREMESKRBBBN IR

BECANBARNERNFAAEFNERMEHEE
EAREEEBZES
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised

as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

32. ARBEEMBLARZFHE(E)

RBBEHR AR BHAEEMETEER
ZEMMBRAR ZEMBRARZHEHNEER
PELE - ZEWBRARZIEXEB RN

T

Number of subsidiaries

FTEXEK TEEXEME MEXRHE
2018 2017
e G
Investment holding Hong Kong 2 2
REER i
Investment holding The British Virgin Islands 1 1
REER RERLES
Investment holding The PRC 4 4
BB R th
7 7
Inactive Hong Kong 2 2
i BB
Inactive The British Virgin Islands 1 1
X RERLES
Inactive Cambodia 1 1
X EREE S
Inactive The PRC 4 3
i T
8
15 14
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33. FFEHIMRER

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRIINTBERFEHUERRCAEEELE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling MEBARIZFMER
interests:
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting (Loss) profit
Place of incorporation and rights held by non- allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary principal place of business controlling interests ~ non- controlling interests controlling interest
FENMERAEREE OIRTHENEERZ
MEAREH AMALREEEBBH BERRAELS (BR) &7 EHE g b
2018 2017 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\f ZE+F ZE-tF ZB-NF —T-tF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETE
Maoming Huada The PRC 10% 10% 7914 36,477 38,036
GELIEIN il
7914 36,477 38,036

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

BEERFEN MR ASENE QR 2%

subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests as set BERBEHINDOT -
out below.
2018 2017
—B-NEFE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TTT
Maoming Huada BEEWEKXR
Current assets RBEE 1,425,721 1,265,085
Non-current assets IERBEE 91,703 96,956
Current liabilities mENBE (1,083,861) (918,245)
Non-current liabilities JEMEAE (55,841) (63,436)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARHEB AEGEER 341,245 342,324
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests SEFE R M R (R R A 36,477 38,036
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33. FEGIMEE (F)

(Continued)
2018 2017
—E-NE ZZT—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFTRT AR®EFTT
Revenue g 90,251 547,341
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) FR(EER) &
income for the year 2H (AX) lmesE (15,593) 79,140
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) ~ ANARI#EA AEEFER (EE)
income for the year attributable to owners of wAREE (FAX) REERE
the Company (14,034) 71,226
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) JEFE B MR S B F AN (EE)
income for the year attributable to w A R 2E (X)Wl g
non-controlling interests (1,559) 7,914
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) FR(EE) MR
income for the year 2 (X)W RsE (15,593) 79,140
2018 2017
—EBE-NFE —ZT—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFTTT
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities #& % /E 1158 &
A () 588 159,883 (31,735)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities & & /EEFTEIRE CRd)
MAEEE (25,043) 19,582
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEBERESRLFE (107,000) (5,648)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BemA R F8 27,840 (17,801)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34, ARPTMBARRE
OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
—BE-NFE —ET—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AREFTTT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SN NCIPA £ 1,009,623 1,009,623
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b U FRIB 240 205
Bank balances and cash RITHEFEERS 621 900
861 1,105
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H fth fE T 5018 1,888 1,102
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERTHT B A | 5kIE 794,949 756,025
Amount due to a director Bt EERIE 2,862 2,714
Loan payables JERTE K 33,225 16,656
832,924 776,497
Net current liabilities mE A EFRE (832,063) (775,392)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEBEE 177,560 234,231
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Ordinary share capital B A 161,569 136,015
Reserves ERe] 15,991 98,216
Total equity g L 177,560 234,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 3. FRATMBEMRRE (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
The movements in reserves are as follows: EEEHHOT
Share
Share  Contributed options  Translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RAEE HARS BRERE EifE Sy ] @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note)
(F3E)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5-A—-H 567,100 67,614 - (18,206) (524,662) 91,846
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (16,946) (16,946)
Exchange difference arising on BN ERHRERZIES
translation functional currency to MEEzERER
presentation currency S = = 17,835 = 17,835
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year FRzEYE (BR) 8% - - - 17,835 (16,946) 889
Recognition of share-based payment expenses ERURMAEROARES = S 5,481 S = 5,481
At 31 December 2017 R=F—+F+-A=1-H 567,100 67,614 5481 (371) (541,608) 98,216
Loss for the year FNER - - = = (50,760) (50,760)
Exchange difference arising on B ERAE A2 &%
translation functional currency to MEEZELER
presentation currency - - - (43,355) - (43,355)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREERLE = S S (43,355) (50,760) (94,115)
Issue of new shares Bk 12,777 - - - - 12,777
Transaction costs attributable to the issue of new shares  E/THRBEE X HHA (887) - - - = (887)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\$t-A=t-H 578,990 67,614 5,481 (43,726) (592,368) 15,991
Note:  Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference Mizk: ARABABBREARADETLT BRI @EER

between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by

the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group

reorganisation in 2001.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which include loan payables, amount due to a director
and secured bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

35. EXEKER

AEEERLEN  ARRAEENEBEIEE
@ RSB BB T AR T8 B AR IS 1R
AR S B o AR ] R B A T o

AEBNEARBEEGR (BHEENER BN
ESFALEEMRITER) RARREE AEE
#m (BREBITRALHEE) -

EETHRNEARB -FRRRETZ—8#n &
FEREARANEZHEANBRZAR REE
SZHEBRER AKREBEBIRMNE FIRET
KPR EI A B ITH B LR A A T
HEBERRRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. BT A
(@) Categories of financial instruments () HMEIAFEH
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Financial assets BKEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BARERFARBZD (AR ETA
Ba)
Mandartorily measured at FVTPL REIEARE ABRE
— Held-for-trading —FHER 5 21 -
Financial assets at amortised costs B EKAGTE M BEE 108,801 27
Loans and receivables (including cash and E R & W IE
cash equivalents) (RS RIRSZEY) = 64,216
108,822 64,243
Financial liabilities BkaE
At amortised cost bize: $i-]DN 48,308 175,676
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEREBREEBRZERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables, financial asset at FVTPL/held-for-trading
investment, restricted bank deposit, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, loan
payables, amount due to a director and secured bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
the Group’s financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —ZF—/\F£#

AEBZEIZMHTABRREEMBYRTIR &
DMREFABBEZHBEE/ HEXSHREZ
BRE -ARHBITHER SERBITER - RIT
EERE BHREBEMFIE BENER-
N —R2EEREALRBERBITER-MHB T
BAZHBREHANERE -FRASEENK
TAEzZRReEmERR (MXER) FEM
e RomBE & R - AR B % F R B 2 R
FymT-BEEBERERERTRRAE  BR
B R A R B b E R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to loan payable. The Group’s loan payables carry
fixed contractual interest rates and therefore expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The carrying value of
the loan payables which are classified as financial liabilities
at amortised cost is affected by the change in market
interest rate. The Group currently does not have a fair
value hedging policy (see note 22) for details of these loan
payables. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to restricted bank deposit, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.
Interest rate risk is managed by the management on an
ongoing basis with the primary objective of limiting the
extent to which net interest expense could be affected by
adverse movements in interest rates. Interest rate risk on
bank deposits is considered immaterial and therefore has
been excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel. Restricted
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the directors of the
Company consider that the exposure of cash flow interest
rate risk arising from them is insignificant.

e MR MR

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

G
ETL

AEERENEREHANENXRAR A%
BHENEFRZEESGOMNETE HAKE
Eﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂfﬂh°“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ§
ZHBABENRNERZEREX TS MK
BRE - ASERKIBARBHIBEK(F
AZERNERNFBEFL2HME22) KK
BMARERSRITENR CEFRITER R
THEFR %@ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ§ﬂ$
AR EEEBRFEEETENTER B
BRRRFFNERAFREINEANESZE
HIEE o B0 ER 1T 17 SRE9 A R AL g A K - B it
WARBEETNINGFEREDHA -

M RGREREDT

uTmﬁﬁf“ME%‘W¢%KZﬁ@ﬂ”
ﬁﬁF KT RERMEDL - 5T D RER

LHRAEEVHTARE ET%*%@%%
ﬁOWEEMEAEﬁﬂTH 2 3 17 A 2B [E 3
B A MR PS0EER (T —+F:
w@%%)ﬂWF”ﬁT@%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ”ﬁ
FBERBETEREBTERT RERARQ
AEERAERAREELENRERENRER
Ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss (2017: profit) for the year
would increase/decrease by RMB492,000 (2017: decrease/
increase by RMB514,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model under application
of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on other receivables
based on individually. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ELBEmARAR
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36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

TS EpE (&)
MERGRESNT (&)

i AR FFrsl TBS0EES (T —+4:50
EE2) ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁmﬂ%l%&,ﬁh?x ANEE
EEEFE(ZE—tF #%8)BHRELA
THARYA92,000 (ZE—+F: T £
F AR¥514,0007T) °

=B R E

R-F—N\E+=A=+—R BRZIHH
B TN ek
EEATZBRE REH B RERT T
BHAEMERM AL SAREA

RREEERR AEEEEEEXLEAK
hEeEsETEERR FEMRLREMERRE
FF o DAREOR SREXER #E 1T 028 @ 8 HI R 3K o LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36.

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories: ]

=&

RE B REE

e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-F

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

BEITHE(Z)
BERMEEEERBE (&)

=B R B ETE (A

BAEFNFEEEAT S

l:l/\

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description other items

AEBEEFR i HtpisEE HtER

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12-month ECL

1K 2 g not have any past-due amounts REABEBREEEE
RSHFTNEHNRRERE B EE(EEHRIE

Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

FERKR

High risk
= [ B2

Write-off
55

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's other receivables, restricted bank deposit, pledged
bank deposits, bank balance and cash which are subject to

ECL assessment:

since initial recognition
BYIFHRE  EERR D REEM
There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

BREBERARECHREERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
ERBRAGBBABAREVHRNE mAKE
BB FEAIKREFIE

TR F AR B E b R
® o BHEBBITER
TERAGEEERNG) FEERZEERR

2HEMEEERE-KERER
ERES

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
THEREEBRE-SHBREE
R

Amount is written off

TR O M

B BRHERITE

RiTEFLRES (BF#
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

BEITHE(Z)
BERMEEEERBE (&)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36.

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

=B R B ETE (A

External  Internal Gross
credit credit 12-month or carrying
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL amount
HRAEEF ABEET 1REAR
2018 —2-N\§ Wi & £ 2HEREERR BEREE
RMB'000
AREFTT
Financial assets at BBEA LA ES
amortised cost GBEE
Bank balances and cash ROBEERE 19 A3 N/A @A 12-month ECL 52,422
NEAESREESE
Restricted bank deposit BERHIRITER 18 A3 NA @A 12-month ECL 8,169
NEAESREESE
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 19 A3 N/A TR 12-month ECL 38,085
NEAESREESE
Other receivables H e W FiIa 17 NA @A Llowrisk  12-month ECL 10,125
Ve NEAESREESE
Highrisk  Lifetime ECL - credit- 429
BEK  impaired
PNRHNEEFE-FE
BE
Other items HEL
Financial guarantee TSR AL (KE) 31 NARER  Lowrisk 12-month ECL 632,271
contracts (Note) ERE  EAESEEER
Note:  For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amounts Mzt MHMBRREAOMES LREEELASERESS

represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed

under the respective contracts.

The credit risks on bank balances, restricted bank
deposit and pledged bank deposits are limited because SIEEFIRIERT
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for other receivables under the
general approach.

36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

=B R B ETE (E)

TREJRE-RTEZERREMEEFTIED
2HEMEEERZES-

Lifetime ECL
(credit
impaired)

> HATEEA(E
EEE(EE
VEREW,
RMB’'000
AREFTT

At 1 January 2018

Exchange adjustments b i, a2

R-_E—N\E—H—H 407

22

At 31 December 2018

R-ZE—-—N\F+=-_HA=+—H 429

Based on the ECL assessment, the credit exposure for other
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment, are
considered as low risk because the counterparties have a
low risk of default and does not have material past due
amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
loss allowance provision for the amounts was recognised.

HRRZETROARBREAYESKRARS
BHOAUBREEREEEENG EMMBE
E(RETHEHEEERTG) 2EEMA K
BRERRBR RBEE_T-N\F+_A=+—
BLEFE SELZFTRERBEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity
for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ELBEmARAR
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36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

MEBE LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 i E—

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

fa."FA BF %5 R 2R P =

—NF+ZA=1T—HLFE

36. B IR (&)
(b) HERBEBEEERKE (£)

mBEZmEE (E)

ﬂ/bﬁ@j,éﬁ f}ﬁ (%5)

SHETTE £

Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand Total amount at
average o less than 3 months 1 year to 2to5 undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1year 2 years years cash flows 2018
R=B-Nf
REXF KURRE t-B=t-H
mETHNE  SRZER ZERE-F  -FEMF  WEFEIF it L ZIREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 B BERE
Trade and other payables BARAMERNTE N/A T 445 - - - 445 445
Amount due to a director ERESHE N/AFER 2,862 - - - 2,862 2,862
Secured bank borrowings BHMRT jai?i
- variable rate — 2B 5.1 11,776 - - - 11,776 11,776
Loan payables ERER 16 24,441 9,048 - - 33,489 33,225
Financial guarantee contracts BRERED N/A FiE R 632,271 - - - 632,271 -
671,795 9,048 - - 680,843 48,308
Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average or less than 3 months 1 year to 2to5  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 2 years years cash flows 2017
RIZ—+E
REXSH AERRE T-ZA=T-H
METHH % SR=EA ZHEAZE-% —EEmE MEEREF mERE LEHE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AR%TR  ARETFR  AREBTT  ARETL  AR%TR
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 HHE[E
Trade and other payables B REMEMNE NA 7NE B 37,002 = = = 37,002 37,002
Amount due to a director EREZFE N/A T B 2,14 - - - 2,14 2714
Secured bank borrowings BHERRTER
- fixed rate B E 105 109,770 = S S 109,770 107,000
- variable rate —FB7E 3 12,395 - - - 12,395 12,304
Loan payable ERER 6 246 16,738 - - 16,984 16,656
Financial quarantee contracts HRERED NA T A 43,460 - - - 443 460 =
605,587 16,738 - - 622,325 175,676
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
RMB2,992,000 and RMB110,977,000 respectively. Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings
will be repaid three years (2017: four years) after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, details of
which are set out in the table below:

36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

REE T RE DI (E)

BEBEMREREBEGRRZBITERAEFT AL
FHBESWM [BREXRKPR=ZFEA] 2 HHEE
N-R—_B—NER-_E—+F+-_A=+—
H BITERZABEASEINALEAAR
#2,992,000t X A R%110,977,0007T ° &
MAEEZHERRE EETHEEHRITAR
TEHEBXRABERZHEE - AAREEN
B ZERTEFRERBREBRE=ZF(=Z
—tF ONF)ARBEERBHEMEBEER
HEAEE HFEBHRTER:

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at

average 1year to undiscounted 31 December

interest rate~ Within 1 year 2 years 2to 5 years cash flows 2018

RZZ-N\F

RERBEE t-A=t-H

METFHFIE -£R —-FEME REZERE TEHE ZEEE

% RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEHBEE
Secured bank borrowings BRIBRTER

~ variable rate - FEH% 4 1,351 1,351 450 3,152 2,992

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at

average 1 year to undiscounted 31 December

interest rate Within 1 year 2 years 2to 5 years cash flows 2017

RZE—+F

AERRE tZA=+-AH

MEFHH=E —FR —FEME MEEREF MERE ZREE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

YN S AEBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEHBEE
Secured bank borrowings BERRTER

- fixed rate ~EEfx 105 17,889 58,026 51,185 127,100 107,000

- variable rate — 5 BT 3 1,116 1,114 2,041 4071 3,977

19,005 59,140 53,226 131,371 110,977
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

36. MBIA(A)
b) HBEEAREBABRBEE (£)

REE T RE DI (E)

LA BEREREOMESNERA/AKERIE
ZHREHEREE (HERIRZIETHER
ZEB)AERERLEMNNES SR - RER
BERRZEARN AEERRBAIEESFSRIE
B BRI A E A SRR - PR T -t fl 5 AT BE

P& BARRZHETREFAEZEEREM
BREKAEXEEEEMBRBERBERZA

BElE -

1453 B0 ) % 1 2 B 59 45 D R 2 0 £ R
TR A ERFBHETAREEMNE BT T
B8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market transactions. The
directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

(d) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

One of the Group's financial assets is measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table provides an analysis of financial instrument that is
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable.

36. B IR (&)
(o) NRE

MBEENUBEBENARENREARNE
BEEARBEBABENTSER 5 ZERUKER
Eﬁi/ﬁgﬁj—ﬁ%n—y %%nu\ \/Zgl/z\ﬁﬁi%i&
KRANERANVBEENMBEERAERZAR
nERE-

(d BHBIEZAAREE

AEBZET-RYBEERNBREHRRAR
B8 - TREIWBTAZDMN  HTIRA

SHERERANEBAETRBATERAAET
ABE—REE=M -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-4 o F=H CHY
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFTL
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\E+-F=1+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEH ARG UBEE 21 = = 21
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB-t£+-F=1+-H
Held-for-trading investments BEXSRBEIRE 27 - - 27

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during
both years. The fair value of the financial assets at
FVTPL/held-for-trading investments is from quoted bid
prices in an active market.
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e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE T —N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

37.

METHMELRAEZHIR

TRHNAEEREEDHELABZED

BERERIRGE

"BMEBBMELAR

ERERERARKASRBERNAKERE
BeREXRITERBETHRERECZEB

activities.
Interest
payable
(included
Loan Amount due in other
payables to a director  Borrowings payables) Total
ERFE
(Gt AEA
ENER EAESFE B EARE) w@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR¥KTR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-N\5-A-A 16,656 2,714 119,304 361 139,035
Financing cash flows RERERE 15,040 - (108,414) (9,139) (102,513)
Foreign exchange translation EkgE 1,529 148 886 (273) 2,290
Interest expenses FBHX - - - 2,798 2,798
Interest expense capitalised to BACERRMEINEBRT
properties under development - - - 6,341 6,341
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+-A=+—-H 33,225 2,862 11,776 88 47,951
Interest
payable
(included
Loan  Amount due in other
payable  toadirector  Borrowings payables) Total
JERTHE
(st AEf
ENER ERNEZHE B3 ERFE) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-H—H = 3,160 133,539 375 137,074
Financing cash flows BERENE 17,342 (446) (13,728) (12,207) (9,039)
Foreign exchange translation EkgE (686) = (507) 349 (844)
Interest expenses FBEHX - - - 6,701 6,701
Interest expense capitalised to BACEERMEZFERY
properties under development - - - 5,143 5,143
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+—H 16,656 2,714 119,304 361 139,035
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Schedule of Properties

=B E R

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\E+-HA=+—H

A. PROPERTIES IN THE PRC

A VRABRZYWE

Stage of
Group's development & Date of
Location Usage Area Lease term interest Classification Completion
BN REEARK
E itk [ HEH iR ik =IAH
Portion of Maoming Project,  Commercial Gross floor area-=  Medium to 90% Completed, 2016
Zhangian 7th Road, approximately long term investment
Yuehua East District, 4,000 sg. m. properties
Maoming
7 % T A Al 3R GRS BEEEE- hHERE 90% B —ERF
BERRE #94,000 75 K REME
GESEN: P )
Unsold portion of Maoming ~ Commercial and Gross floor area-=  Medium to 90% Completed, 2016/2018
Project, Zhangian 7th Road,  residential complex approximately long term properties
Yuehua East District, 245,000 sqg. m. held for sale
Maoming
74 Tk A B BEREZGAR  BEEER- hHERE 90% BRI fEH —Z—RF/
BER/PERARR #9245,000F 75 % ENE “Z-N\F
AHEHD
B. PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. URBBZYHE
Approximate Lease Group's
Location Usage saleable area term interest
S 3
e i} BATHER®R - HEH FEfn s
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, Office premises — Own use 242 sq.m. Medium 100%
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon.
NERDERREORITER L —SRI1501E BSFENE-BER 242F )5 K A 100%

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED +E t#HEEERAHE
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